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ANNUAL REPORT ASD FINANCIAL STAVTEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIND Y E AR ENDED N 30, 2('I")
1. Key Entity Information and Management

(a) Background information

The National Council for Law Reporting (NCLR) is a State Corporation in the Office of the Attorney
General and Department of Justice. Kenya Law is the brand name of the National Council for 1aw

Reporting,
L
NCLR was created in 1994 by virtue of the National Council for Law Reporting Act (No. 11 of 1994). The
ChiefJustice of the Republic of Kenya is the Chairperson of the Council (a Board equivalent); a body that
is responsible for the generalpolicy and strategic direction of the organization.
(b) Principal Activities
©

The mandate of the organization is to:

1) Publish the judicial opinions of the Superior Courts of Law in Kenya i.e. the Supreme Court, Court of
Appeal and the High Court. NCLR is the designated publisher of the Kenya Law Reports, which are
the official law reports of the Republic of Kenya.

ii) Revise, consolidate and publish the Laws of Kenya; a2 mandate delegated to NCLR by the Office of
the Attorney General through Legal Notice No. 29 of 2009, in line with scctions 7 and 8 of the @
Revision of Laws Act.

iii) Publish such other related publications as it deems necessary.

On the Council’'s website - www.kenyalaw.org- vou will find Case Law, the laws of Kenya, the
Padiamentary Hansards, the Kenya Gazettes, the Daily Cause Lists from various courts, Legal Notices,
Circulars, Committee Reports and other legal publications. @

(c) Key Management
Kenya Law’s day-to-day management is executed by the following key organs:
i) Council Members
1) Editor / CEO/ Accounting officer
1i1) Management ®

Fiduciary Management

The key management personnel who held office during the financial year ended 30™ June 2020 and who
had direct fiduciary responsibility were:

Namec of the Officer Responsibility ®
Mt. Long’et Terer Lditor / Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
Ms. Janet Munywoki Sar. Assistant Lditor/ Deputy CEO
Ms. Janette Watila Team Leader, Human Resources & Administration
Ms. Linda Awuor Team Leader, Research and Development ®
Mr. Pascal O. Oluoch Team Leader, Finance and Procurement
Ms. Wambui Kamau Team Leader, Laws of Kenya
Ms. Emily Nakhungu Team Leader, Sales Marketing and Customer Care
Mr. Martin L. O. Andago Team Leader, Information Communications and Technology ®
Ms. Edna K. Muthaura Team Leader, Strategy, Quality and Assurance and Performance
Evaluation
Ms. Njeri Githanga Team Leader, Law Reporting
Mr. Bornface Qdero Team Leader, Internal Audit [ )
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o (d) Fiduciary Oversight Arrangements
The oversight responsibility of the Council is delivered through various Committee activities. The Council has

four (4) committees through which various oversight roles are executed as shown below:

Audit & Risk Management Committee activities;

i) To monitor and report on the effectiveness of Kenya Law’s internal financial controls and risk
managementsystems.

i) To monitor and review the effectiveness of Kenya Law’s internal audit function and follow up
on theimplementation of audit recommendations.

iii) To monitor compliance with the legal framework in Kenya Law's procurement and financial
managementpractices.

iv) To review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of
audits, taking into account relevant professional and regulatory requirements.

v) To develop and implement a policy on Kenya Law’s engagement with the office of the Auditor

General.

Membership of the Audit & Risk Management Conmmittee of the Council includes:

Name of the Members
Committee
| Audit and Risk [ i) Mr. Michael Muchemi :
| Management ' if) Hon. Justice Anthony Ndungu — Term ended 30t April 2020
| Committee 1 ili) Prof. Kiaric Mwaura |
| | i) Ms. Jennifer Gitiri J

Finance & General Purposes (F&=GP) Commiittee activities;

i) To guide in the development and approval of Kenya Law’s finance policies and procedures.

i) To guide in the development and periodic reviews of adequate internal controls in Kenya Law’s
finance andaccounting systems.

iii) To monitor the integrity and reliability of Kenya Law’s periodic Financial Reports and Annual
Financial statements in reporting of Kenya Law’s financial performance.

iv) To review significant judgments made by management in the financial statements.

V) To review and approve Kenya Law’s Quarterly / Annual Reports and Financial Statements.

vi) To guide in the preparation and approval of Kenya Law’s budget, Annual work plan and procurement
planto promote timely delivery of the Kenya Law strategic plan.

Menmbership of the Finance & General Purposes Committee of the Council inclisdes:

Namc of the Members

Committee

i) Ms. Janet Kimeu

ii) Hon. Lady Justice Fatuma Sichale - Term ended 30" April 2020
iii) Ms. Linda Murila

iv) Ms. Eva Kimeiywo

v) Mr. Jona Wala

Finance and
GeneralPurposes
Committec

Technical Compmittee activities;

i) To guide in the development, approval and evaluation of the level of implementation of Kenya
Law’sStrategic plan.

1) To guide in the development and approval of policies and procedures of workflows for the technical /
coredepartments.

iii) To monitor the quality and timeliness of Kenya Law's publications and the provision of Public
legalinformation to the public.

iv) To monitor the level of accessibility to public legal information by the public and advice on continuous

improvement.




ANNEAL REFPORT AND FINANC I SEATEMENTS FOR THE FEINANCINEYE AR ENDED UM 30,

20124

Memberihip of the Techuical Commitiee of the Conndl includes:

Name of the { Members

Commirtee

i) Hon. Justice Anthony Ndung’u - Term ended 30th Apnl 2020
i) Ms. Eva Kimetywo

iii) Ms. Linda Murila

iv) Ms. Janet Kimeu

v) Mt Samuel Njoroge

Technical Committee

Human Resonrces Commitlee uctivities;

i) To guide in the development and approval of Kenya T.aw’s IHuman resource instruments.

i) To guide in the development and approval of Kenya Law's remuneration, compensation and
benefitsstruciure;

iii) To guide in the development and approval of policies and procedures for management of Kenya
Law'slHuman resources.,

iv) To guide in the development and approval of policies and procedures for Kenya law staff
development andmotvation programmes.

v) Toguidein the developmentand approval of policies and procedures [or Kenya Law staffwelfare
programmes.

vi) To guide in the development and approval of policies and procedures for Kenya Law staff relations,
discipline and dispute resolution.

Menmbership of the Human Resonrces Conmitiee of the Conncil includes:

Name of the Committee Members

Hon. Lady Justice l‘atuma Sichale - Term ended 30th April 2020
i) Prof. Kiaric Mwaura
i) Mr. Michael Muchemi
i) Ms. Jennifer Giun

I luman Resources Committee

In addition to internal oversight structures exceuted by the Council, the National Assembly also

exercises oversight of Ministries Departments and Agencies (MDAs) as follows;

i) Parliamentary committees investigate specific matters of national policy, government administration,
budget execution, government performance of all Ministries Departments and Agencies (MDAs).

ii) The Parliamentary Committees exccute assignments that patliament would not be able to undertake
in the large, formal environment of house sittings, such as finding out the facts of a case or issue,
gathering evidence from expert groups or individuals, sifting through evidence and drawing up
reasoned conclusions. :

iii) The Budget and Appropriations Committee provides oversight in the Medium Term Expenditure
Framework (MTEF) budget process especially in the appropriation of budgets to Ministries
Departments and Agencies (MDAs). The Council being a government agency therefore is subject to
this budger process and oversight.

iv

~—

The Public Accounts and the Public Tovestment Committees specifically  provide oversight
(watchdogs) into the use of public funds by scrutinizing audited financial statements and specifically
audit queries flagged by the Office Auditor General. The Council, being a State Corporation, s
therefore subject to these oversight arrangements.
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(e)

(0

(g)

(h)

(i)

Kenya Law receives conditional grants from various development partners to fund specific activities from

time to time. ‘The utilization of these funds is always subject to specific conditions from the partners. In such cases,

development partners provide the following oversight activities;

i) To Monitor and review progress of projects in relation to the pre-set performance agreements,
contractsor expected outputs.

ii) To provide recommendations regarding strategic  directions, new  opportunities  for
investment/collaborations and cfficiency in performance.

iii) To approve the budget proposals for development projects and interrogate the periodic
performancereports for the same.

iv) To provide projects monitoring and evaluation arrangements, both operational and financial.

Kenya Law’s Head Office
ACK Garden Annex,
Fifth Floor
1* Ngong Avenue,

P.O. Box 10443 — 00100,
Nairobi, Kenya.

Kenya Law’s Contacts
Telephone: 020 2712767
E-mail: info@kenyalaw.org
Website: www kenyalaw.org
Kenya Law's Bankers
i) Kenya Commercial Bank,

Capitol Hill Branch,
P.O Box 69695 — 00400,
Nairobi, Kenya.

ii) Barclays Bank of Kenya,
Hutlingham Branch,
P.O Box 34974 — 00100,
Nairobi, Kenya.

Kenya Law’s Independent Auditors

The Auditor General,

Office of the Auditor General,
Anniversary Towers,

University Way

P.O Box 30084- 00100

Nairobi, Kenya.

Kenya Law’s Principal Legal Adviser
The Attorney General,

Office of the Attorney General & Department of Justice,
Harambee Avenue,

P.O. Box 40112 - 00200

Nairobi, Kenya.
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2. The Council Members ®

Hon. Chicf Justice David Maraga

The Chicf Justice & President of the Supremie Court of Kenya.
Chairman, Council for Law Reporting

Hon. Justice David Maraga is the Chicf Justice, President of the Supreme Court of
Kenya and the Chairman of the National Council for Law Reporting. Prior to his
appointment as Chief Justice, Justice Maraga was the Presiding _]ud%f: of the Court
of Appeal at Kisumu and ﬂle"Ch;u'?ersox) of the _}qucm%" ommittec on
Elections. He was also Chairpetson of the Tribunal appointed by His Excellency
the President of the Re Eublic of Kenya that investigated and ruled on the conduct
of a Judge of the High Coutt of Kenya, il ‘
Priot to his appointment as r]udge.qf the Court of Agpcal, he had served as the @
Pr.csxdmg‘{udge of the Fami ¥ Division of the High Court of Kenya at Nairobi;
and Resident Judge at the High Court of Kenya at Nakuru, Before joining the
Judiciary, Justice Maraga was a legal practitioner for twenty-five (25) years in
conveyancing, civil and criminal litigation. The Hon. Chief ‘{qslicc Maraga holds a
Master of Laws (I.LLM) Degree from the Universityof Nairobi; a Bachelor of Laws
?,LB) Degree from the same University and a Dillwlonm inLegal Practice from the
Kenya School of Law. He is a member of the Law Society of Kenya and the
Chartered Institute of Arbitrators, London. ®

Hon. Justice (Rtd) Kihara Kariuki, CBS
The Attorney General

Prof. Kiaric Mwaura
Dean, School of Law, University of Nairobi

Prof. Kiarie Mwaura is the Dean of the School of Law, where he is also a full
professor of corporate law. He is a certified governance auditor, who serves on

the Transport Licensing Appeals Board. I1e has worked previously as the Vice
Chancellor of Riara University andas Director of the International Erasmus
(Ifuropean Hxchange) Programme at Queen’s University Belfast,

At the University of Nairobi, he has held the posittons of Associate Dean ®
(Mombasa Campus), Chair of Commetcial Law Department and Curriculum

Review Coordinator. He is a Fellow of the UK Higher Education Academy, a
Certified Public Secretary and an Advocate of the High Court of Kenya. Prof.

Kiarie is well read with academic credentials from Queen’s University Belfast
(PGCHET), University of Wolverhampton (PhD), Staffordshire University
(LLM), Kenya School of Law (Legal Practice Diploma), and the University aof - ]
Nairobi (LLB). i R S
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Me. Mwenda Njoka

Government Printer

M jﬁ‘népKimcu A
vocate of the High Court
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Advocate of the High Court

Mr. Michael Muchemi is an Advocate of the High Court of Kenya and Managin

Partner, Muchemi & Co Advocates. Previously, he was an advocate at Kairu an

Co. Advocates. Mr. Muchemi holds a Master of Business Administration from

the United States International University, a Bachelor of Laws Degtee from the ®

University of Nairobi and aPost Graduate Diploma in Law from the Kenya

School of Law. i _

He is 2. member of the Law Society of Kenya and the Chartered Institute of:

Atbitrators, London. : e ;
©

Mr. Long’et Terer ®

Editor / CEO '
®
®
o'
®
e
@ .

vii '
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3. Key Management

Mr. Long’et Terer,
Editor/ Chief Executive Officer.

Mr. Terer holds a Master of Laws (LLM) degree from Durham University, a
Bachelor’s Degree in Law (LLB) from Bangalore University and a Post Graduate
Diploma in Law from the Kenya School of Law. He’s a Member of the Law Society |
of Kenya.

Ms. Janet M. Munywoki, |
Senior Assistant Editor/ D.CEO ‘

i
{
§

Ms. Munywoki holds a Master’s Degree in International Studies and a Bachelor’s |
Degree in Law (LLB), BSL and a Postgraduate Diploma from the Kenya School of |
Law. Ms. Munywoki is also a Certified Mediator and Member of the Law Society of |

Kenya. {
i

Ms. Janet Watila - . ’
HR and Administrative Manager

Ms. Watdla holds a Master’s degree in Human Resources Management and a |
Bachelor’s degree in Business administration. She has a certificate in Senior |
Leadership Development Program from the Kenya School of Government. Ms. |
Watila is a practicing member of the Institute of Human Resources Management |
(THRM) |

i

':, Pascal Othieno Oluoch

Team-leader, Finance and Procurement

Mr. Othieno holds a Master’s Degree in Strategic Management and a Bachelor’s |
Degree in Business Management (Accounting). He is a Certified Public accountant of |
Kenya (CPA-K and a Member of the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of |
Kenya (ICPAK). ‘
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Ms. Linda Awuor

| Team-leader, Research and Development

Ms. Awuor holds a Master’s Degree in Environmental law and a Bachelor’s Degree in
Law (LLB).She has a Posigraduate diploma in Law from the Kenya School of 1aw.
She holds a certificate in Strategic Leadership Development Programme from the
Kenya School of Government and is an 1SO Lead Auditor. She is a Member of the
Law Society of Kenya

Ms. Edna K Muthanra

Team-leader, Strategy, Quality and Performance Evaluation

' Ms. Muthaura holds a Master’s Degree in Organizational Development and a
Bachelor's Degreein Law (11.B). She has a Postgradnate diploma in Law from the
- Kenya School of Law., She holds acertificate in Quality Systems Management and 15 an
1SO Lead Auditor. She is a Member of the Law Society of Kenya

Mr. Martin Andago

Team-leader, Informauon, Commumeation and Technology

| Mr. Andago holds a Bachelor's Degree in Business Information Systems. He also holds a
certificatein Strategic Leadership Development programme from the Kenva School of

Government.

- Ms. Wambui Kamau

| Team-leader, Law of Kenya

~ Ms. Kamau holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Law (LLB). She has a Postgraduate diploma
©in Law from the Kenya School of Law. She holds a certihicate in Steategic Leadership
i Development from the Kenva School of Government. She ts o Member of the Law
- Society of Kenya
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Ms. Emily Nakhungu

Team-leader, Sales, Marketing and Customer Care.

of Government.She is a Member of Public Relations Society of Kenya.

Ms. Njeri Githanga

Team-leader, Law Reporting

Ms. Githanga holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Law (1LLB) and a Postgraduate Diploma in
Laws from the Kenya School of Law. She holds a certificate in Senior Management

Kenya.

Mr. Bornface Otieno Odero
Team- Leader, Internal Audit

Mr. Odero holds a Master’s Degree in Finance and a Bachelor’s Degree in Commerce
(Finance). He is a Certified Public Accountant, 2 member of the Institute of Certified
Public Accountants of Kenya (ICPAK) and Institute of Internal Auditors. Mr. Odero
is also a member of the Chartered Institute of Financial Analysts (CIFA).

Ms. Nakhungu holds a Bachelor's Degree in Communication and Media. She also
|| holds a certificate in Marketing and Senior Management course from the Kenya School |

|
|

i

course from the Kenya School of Government. She’s a Member of the Law Society of |
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4. Chairperson’s Statement

I am pleased o present to you the National Council for Jaw
Reportng (Kenya Law) Annual Report for the financial year
201972020, This Annual Report covers the period from July 1,
2019 1o June 30, 2020 and has been prepared by the
management of Kenya Law. This Annual Report has been
submitted to the Council together with the accompanying
audited financial statements prepared in accordance with the
International Public  Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS-
Accrual).

We have come to the mid-point of the implementation of the
Kenya Law Stratepic Plan 2018 ~ 2022 and have made good
progress towards its implementation. The plan identified three
strategic themes which Kenya Law did focus on in this financial
year. These are: access 1o public legal information; organizational
susuunﬂﬂlily; and corporate tdentity and brand visibility as the @
drivers to achieving its mandate. The plan also recognized and positioned the organization to leverage on

technology toenhance organization etficiency and effectivencess.

The report caprures the activities undertaken by Kenva Law i these thematic areas and highlights the
achievements, progress and challenges during the period. With this, the management team had a firm basis
for reviewing and adjusting operations to improve efficiency asthe finanaal year progressed. ®

The Judiciary has consistently prioritized technology as a tool to enhance aceess 1o justice. | am therefore

glad to state that among the notable achievements Kenya Law achieved this year was an innovative

soJution to the perennial prablem of access to real-time, up-to-date laws of Kenya for judicial officers. In
consultation with the Judiaary library team, Kenya Law introduced the use of a shared folder on the

Google platform ereated in g-mail. As Google is a platform that is readily accessible by the Judiciary library ®
team, the folder can therefore be shared with the relevant stations and updates ean be real-time. This will
tremendously increase the efficacy of the judicial officers in the performance of their duties to the citizens

of Kenya,

Even as the Judiciary continues to engage the other arms and institutions of government in order to

address some ol the challenges it is facing, 1 would like 1o commend the Council, the management and @
staff of Kenya Law for their constant commitment to the provision of timely and accurate legal
information.

In light of the recent global pandemic which has radically altered the way in which we are working. It has
becomemore and more evident that working with technology is the new normal. Kenya Law has shown

great leadership in how it has embraced this. This is reflected in the flexible and innovative manner in ®
which the organization has continued to exccute its mandate in these trying times. Kenya Law remains
committed to achieving our mandate, our promisc o provide universal access to public legal information

by monitoring and reporting on the development of jurisprudence for the promation of the rule of law.

e
Py ]
Hon. Chicf JnsticeNlartha Karantie Koonse,
Chief Justice & President of the Supreme Court
Chairperson, National Council for Law Reporting
®
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5. Report of the Chief Executive Officer

. enya Law’s Annual Report 2019/2020 communicates its financial and
non- financial information and provides a comprehensive overview of the
financialand organizational performance of the institution in the reporting
petiod July 1M 2019 to June 30" 2020. The financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with the International Public Sector
Accounting Standards (IPSAS-Accrual). Thereport is arranged in chapters
covering the organization and its mandate; corporate governance; our

methodology and strategics; achicvements and milestones; the audited
financial statements; challenges and recommendations; and our forecasts
for the next financial year.

In the year under review great strides were made to actualize the targets set out
in the Annual Work plan 2019/2020. In this financial year ended June 2020, I am
glad to note thatwe are at the mid-point in the implementation of the Kenya Law
Strategic Plan 2018 —2022 and as such we have undertaken a mid-term strategic
plan review of the same, :

In this financial year Kenya Law received from the exchequer a total of Kshs. 354, 300,000 representing a 100%
funding. The allocation was complimented by A-in-A raised through the sale of legal publications amounting
to Kshs. 8,504,400 out of a budgeted Kshs. 10,000,000 for the period ending 30" June 2020. The average
absorption for the financial ear 2019/2020 was 82%.

Our major highlight of the year was that Kenya .aw was able to significandy reduce the backlog in terms of
access to legal publications. Kenya Law prepared, compiled and published eight (8) law reports and two
specialized digests. These were KLR 2013 vol. 1; KLR 2013 vol. 2; KLR 2013 vol. 3; KLR 2015 vol. 1; KLR 1995
(a backlog edition); KILR 1996 (a backlog edition); Devolution Law Report vol. 1; Election Petition vol. 6; the
Supreme Court Digest and the Alternative Dispute Resolution Digest. These have all been printed and are
readily available to the public. Further, we were able to compile and prepare cight more publications: KLLR
2016 vol. 2; KLR 2015 vol. 2; KLR 2017 vol. 1; KLR 2017 vol. 2; KLR 2018 vol. 1; KLLR 2019vol. 1; Family
Law Report vol. 2; and Commercial Law Report. These will be printed in the next financial year.

Other major achievements included the collection and online publication of 21,236 decisions a majority of
these from the superior courts, the preparation and printing of 4 Laws of Kenya publications, the compilation
and dissemination of fifty (50) weckly online newsletters and publication of 4 quarterly issues of the Bench
Bulletin. Kenya Law was also able to update the Laws of Kenya online database to 93% through consistent
collection of legislation from the Government Printer and from County Governments and uploading of the
same in the Laws of Kenya database. 100% of all the pieces oflegislation collected were uploaded online.

The third and fourth quarters of the financial year saw Kenya Law along with the rest of the country and
indeed theworld, grapple with the ravages of the COVID-19 pandemic. The management team considered the
various ways ofmitigating our risks while ensuring the continued smooth operations of our organization. As
Kenya Law, we were and remain determined to keep our staff members as safe and healthy as possible, and to
minimize exposure to COVID-19. In this regard we will continue to explore and implement innovative
approaches to provide services to the public at this critical time.

I would like to thank all staff members for maintaining a positive attitude during this period. Our resilience
and commitment has ensured that the Kenya Law team has been minimally affected even as we fine-tunet our
operations to accommodate our new reality. These are challenging times for all of us but Kenya Law shall
come out ofthis period even stronger and better. Kenya Law also acknowledges the various actors in the chain
fodudgon of legal information, most especially the office of the Attorney General and the Judiciary, and

Xil
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6. Review of National Council for Law Reporting’s Performance for FY 2019/2020 el

1% officer to include in the financial statement, a statement of the national government entity's

9 performance against predetermined objectives.

St Kenya Law has three (3) strategic pillars and objectives within its Strategic Plan for the FY ®
2018/2019-2022/2023. These strategic pillars arc as follows:

(:'MM - cction 81 Sul)scction 2 (f) of the Public [“inance I\'Iﬂl)ﬂg('!nt‘ﬂl /\Cl, 2012 FC(]\,lil'(‘S the nccnuming
i N
i

Pillar 1: Provision of Access to Public Legal Information
Pillar 2: Organizational Sustainability
Pillar 3: Corporate Identity and Brand Visibility 9

Kenya Law develops its annual work plans based on the above three pillars. Assessment of the
management's performance against its annual work plan is done on an annual basis. Kenya Law achicved its
petformance targets set for the FY 201972020 period for its three strategic pillars, as indicated in the
diagram below:
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Strategic
Pillar

Objective

1 { Publishing Kenya | Number of Kenya Law

Key Performance
Indicators

| Reports pubhshul

Pillar

Access ! Law Reports, |
Public  Legal | the Laws of |
| Information | Kenya and uthu

! Related

Publications  to

aid the cfficient |
and timely |

|

delivery of ustice |

a) Numbcr of Bench Bulleting
published.

B Number- of special digests |
published.

c) Publish 2 Vals. (@500)
Kenya Law Review Journal
printed.

No. of Grey book Volumes
| published

[ No.  of
! printed

service  issucs

| No. of specialized Publications
on Thematic areas published

! Annual supplement @10
| prnted

Inhancing  the | Percentage of Revision and

the  Kenya law
website to aid the
efficient and
tumely delivery of
Justice

provision of | updating of the Laws of |
online legal | Kenya
i content  through |

Percentage of  case  law
updated o Kenya Law website
Prepared and published  fifty
(50) online newsleters, and

. uploadedall 100% of the cause
 lists reccived online

IEstablishe
d training,

rese

larch,be nc hm
ar king,

continuous
learning,
mentoring and
prer review

pl‘l prammes

Number of
emerging

Reports on |
l\\uc\ 1“

jurispmdence

Number  of  Reports on
divergence in judicialreasoning

The number of lLaw
Repons,  leygal - supplements,
legal texts,  Bills, Circulars,
Policies and Native Tribunal
decisions, online journals and

management textbooks
Number of  Knowladge
exchange

wplemeniced

programmes

To Prnt

! Attorney General and  the

Activitics

["To Publish (1,000 Copies cach) of 4 §
| Kenya Law Reports volumes

| KLR Llccuons Petition Vol.6, 1995 & i
' ! 1996). Publication of 4KLR for the |

\

6  publications:

a)4 issues of Bench Bulletins (mucs
45,46,47&48) of the Bench Bull(.m\sl
published

b) Publish 5,000 copies of specal |

digests including Bail and Bond \'2.

Supreme Court case digest, Arbitration |

Case Digest and a Case digest on Big

Four Agenda

) 2 Kenya Law Review

Joumals Vol 6 of 2018 & Vol 7 of June

2019 were published and prnted.

To Pant LOK 2018 Grey book

Print LOK service issues
|

To Publish 50 copics of spccmh/td
Publications on County Laws

©) To Print the annualsupplement @10 | i
To Colleet, upload, consolidate and (
update / revise 90% of all the Laws of |
Kenya collected on the laws of Kenya |
databasc !

(dlgcst 2015, Bail and Bond Case

Achievements

8 KLR for 2018/19 publishcd and
{ printed (2013 Vol1, Vol2 & Vol3,
12015 Vol.1, KLR Devolution Vol. 1,

| FY 2019/2020 90% Completed. (2016
| Vol.1, KLR 1998, KLR Employment
| and Labour Relations, KLR Land and
Environment Vol. 2).

{2) 4 (issues 45, 46 47&48) of
Bench Bulletins published.

b) 3,000 copics ie. Supreme Court |

i Digest Vol 2 Arbitration case digest
| were published and printed. The Big 4
Action plan case digest was at 90% |
level of completion !

|
(,rc) Book 2018 Published and pnmmg
| is on-going. |
Cocmu issucs published and pnmmg is |
| on-oing,
50 copies of the Grey book on (,oumy
! laws ta Uasin Gishu County
comp]ugda;@ printed
357 our 374 starutes done which is
| 95.4% completion.
472 laws out of 503 were updaud
(93%) |
A totl of (8) newly enacted statutes ’
were passed, (7) amendment Acts, (2) |

| omitted  statutes and  (123) Legal |
| Notices were gazetted and uplmdul

To Colleet decisions of the superior
courts  of record and  a select
subordinate courts and ensure 100%
upload of the collecteddecisions within |
48 hours.

into the Kenya lawwebsite,

A total of forty-seven (47) Bills tabled |
in the National Assembly and sixteen ‘
(16) at the Senare, (1) repealed mumc
and (1) Corrigenda were received and
uploaded onto the website.

A towal of 156 picces of legislation i.c.
101 Acts; 48 Bills and 7 Legal Noncce
were collected from the countics and |
uploaded on the portal.

‘The uploading of the judical upmumt |
was done within 48 hours of receipt.

A rtoral of 21,236 dedsions were ,
collected and uploaded. Peepared and;
published fifty (50) online newsletters, |

; and uploaded all 100% of the causc |

i
To prepare 4 Quarterly reports to the |
Kenya
Law  Reform Commission on |
emerging issues injurisprudence

To prepare 4 Quarterly reports to the
Judictary on  divergence in  judicial |
reasoning

To maintain a one stop repository and
dygtal archive  of all  public  lepal

information

To attend a local and an international
Enowledpe exchange programmes

Xiv

| submitted

lists received online
Four (4) reports were done and

|
|
|
{
i
|

Four (4) reports were done and
submitred

A toral of 2,281 other public legal |
information were acquired, digitized |
and archived as online repository of |
public legalinformation.

2 rrainings done for African Court of
Human and PeoplesRights between 27 |
1o 31 January 2020,
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Pillas 2
Organizational
Sustainability

Culure  change  and
skills development to
enhance staff capaaty
and skill scts at Kenya
Law

Modemized  Human
Resource Managemem
and Development

Reliable 1CT
infrastructure and
applications

established and

strengthened

| Establish

! '(H"SpﬂfL’ll(:)',
accountability  and
inteprity mechanisms

Number  of  officers
taained  on - leadership,
management,  and - skill
development

programmes

Level of facthitanon fo
staff compengation,

welfare and benefits

Annual work plans and
MVEE Budpet proposals
for Kenya
deviloped, approved and
submitted to N1 as per
NMTEF requirements

aw

Lepal information
Syxtems  devcloped  /
acquired and
implemented

The Numbet of
Softwaure's heenses
acquired  or - contracts

renewed

Quarterly mamtenance of

Computers, ponters and
other 10T hardware
carricd out

1) No. of Council members
staff  trained  on
corporate  governanceand
leadership.

and

i) No. of institutional
Pohciesdeveloped
i) Implement QNS

Cerihcation requirements

FORTHE FINAN

AL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

To traim at least 5% of

salf on feadership,
National Values,

management
and  skills  development
and Implement
recommendations aof TNA
A To rean 13 safl by
To Compensate the staff
members b)

Fo Remit stadf benehas
<)
implement
acovities,
Development

/Retreats / Teambuilding
crvities

To  Develop  and
staff  welfare

organizarional

To prepare MTER Budget
proposals and work plans

Review
and

To NMonitor and
Budgets

Supplementary budpets

To Develop
information
efficiendy and cffectively
dissemimate

legal
svstems to
frenerate and
all recvived Public Legal

To Yeguie/Benew exasting
hevnses and contracts

To carry our 4 Quanerly
Preventive  Maintenance
(including Parts, upgrades,
cic.)

To  train 11 Council
members on programmes
in  corporate  povermance

and Teadership
Develop 3 departmental
policics.

Carry out ONES Audits

(1) 45 officers were tamed in various areas as pes the
Training, Needs Assesement (I'NA) plan.

1 lotermal Awditor, 2 Semor Law Reporters, 4 I"'V-"I
researchers & 6 pupils recrutted

1 organmzatonal reaeat and one departmental retreat
done

Budget workshops atrended and Kenya Law
allocatedKshs. 321.2 M in the Finaudal Year
2020721

Kenya Law allocated Kshs. 40 Million in
Supplementary 11 2019/2020 Budpet

The implementation of the Beta version of Laws of
KenyaOnline Editor is currently on going and is 70%
complete. Training of staff members from Laws of
Kenya, Research &Development and 1CT carned out
on the gystem.

and

record

Law  Database = Contams  rulings

judgments from the Superor Conns of

D
1,063,939 usersviewed the case liw darabase.

iplaws of Kenya Database = Contains all the acts
of  Patlament and
lepislation. 252,944 users viewed the Laws of Kenya
Databas

corsesponding  subsidiary

. Kenya Law Blop — Contains 1ous reading
materals such as case summades from Kenya and
other commonwealth countrics, conference papers,
speechesand Kenya Law news 116,797 users viewed
the blog.

. Rest of Kenva Law Website — Conraing assorted
material such as Cause Lists, Kenya Gazettes, Judicial
profiles, among others, 198,160 users viewed the site.

4 Quarterly Preventative maintenance oo all Kenya
Lawequipment was undertaken at the scheduled
umes,

11 Council members trained

Stakcholders Engagement Pohicy and the Whistle
Blowers policy done

Departmental lepal and corporate povernancee audits
donr

Internal Quabty Audits for 18O 9001:2015
cernficatiom done

Kenya Law 8O cortfication Y001:2015 in Seprember
2019,
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! No. of Council and
Council Committee
mectings convened

Perfo rman ¢ce Annual evaluanon of the
management and = Council and
accountabilit departmental PCs
| y institutionalized | carried out and Annual
i ! | report Printed
|
; i
I (
continuously| Number of pmmonoml

Corporat | enhance Corporate | programs  implemented |

{ cldentity and | Identity and Brand | to  cnhance  brand |
Brand | visibility | visibility
| Visibility i
‘ Corporate | Number of CSR

Socia | activitiesundertaken
I Responsibility events
done

T'o conduct 4 full Council
mecetings and 16 Council
Comimittee meetings

To crry ow  annual
evaluanon of the Council
and departmental PCs

)  To undertake 28

17 Council and Committee meetings were held.
Council livaluation training done

Kenya Law Performance Contract was signed.
4 Quarterly reports done and sent to the Office of
{ rhcAnomcy Genenal

i | No. of promotional activitics attended were 18

| promotional programmes |

| Annual Conference, Legal
. Awareness  Programmies,
ASK Shows, Moot Court
| Competitions,  Rescarch
Fairs and conferences. i)
To maintain a  robust
social media presence

To  undertake 3 CSR
activines (Tree  Planting,
Social Marathon,

Donanon Drive)

Xvi

including LSK CPDs & |

! Distributed 4 issues of the Bench Bulletin to Kenya
Lawstakeholders across the 47 countics.

327 posts were uploaded on twitter and és*i’

| Facebook, totaling 609. Kenya Law had a total of

6,049 new online followers acquired in the period

funder review, with 2,769 followers bclng on
| Facebook a 19.14 % increase, and 3,280 on twitter a
| 10% increase,

4 CSR activities done
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7. Corporate Governance Statement

e enya Law recognizes the importance of corporate governance to the success of the organization.
We view governance not simply as a sct of rules but the framework supporung core values which
define the acceptable practices in the management of public institutions. It is an expression of the way
% we want to conduct oursclves, which informs our actions and decisions, defines and supports our
culture a as an institution.

The operations of Kenya Law are conducted in accordance with the best practices anchored in principles of
accountability and transparency as espoused in the Constitution and in compliance with relevant laws and
regulations as espoused in the Mwongozo code. The Council has also embraced the international principles
and best practices in corporate governance. The institution discharges its mandate based on strong corporate
governance principles and consistently applies high cthical standards.

Council Charter

The Council has a Charter that guides its operations and facilitates efficient decision making in discharging its
duties and responsibilitics. The Charter offers guidance on matters including but not limited to the following;
The separation of the roles, functions, responsibilitics and powers of the Counal and 1ts individual members;
Powers delegated to the Coundl committees; Matiers reserved for final decision-making and approval by the
full Coundl; Policics and practices of the Councl on matters of corporate povernance, directors” declarations
and conflict of interest, conduct of full Coundl and Councl committee meetings; and  Nomination,
appointment, induction, on-gotng, training and performance evaluation of the full Council and 1ts commttees.

‘The governance framework, the corporate culture and human relatonships that underpin all governance
frameworks, are operating as expected. The roles and functions of the Chairman and the Editor/CEQO are
distinct and their respective responsibilities cleardy defined within the institution.

Council size, Composition and appointments

“The Council comprises of ten (10) Council members, nine (9) of whom are non-exccutive members of the
Council including the Chairman. The Council also co-opts members with diverse expertise in areas of Financial
Management, Human Resource management and audit to complement its capacity.

In the period ended June 2020, the terms of three board members came to an end and their appointing
authoriticswere duly notificd to take the necessary action,

Council Committees

The Council has set up the following Committees, which meet at least quarterly under well-defined terms
reference:

1) Technical Committee

i) Human Resources Committee

i) Finance and General Purposes Commitiee

iv) Audit and Risk Management Committee

Xvii
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A summary of Council meetings and attendance is shown below;

i Overall number of Council mectings: Members attendance for 2019/2020
The council held three (3) Council meetings in the Financial Year 2019/2020 and fourtcen (14) committee
meetingswith over 90% attendance.
Finance &
. General
[tull Techmeal Purposes  Humun \udn
Board Member Posimon Board Commitrec Resource
Hon Justice David Maraga ‘ Chairman 3 ! ! '
Hon. Justice Paul i Member, Representing the j .
® Kihara / Alternate, Ms. . Office of Attorney 3 ! | |
Linda Murila | General i i | i
) Co-opted Member,
Hon. Anne Amadi ChiefRegistrar 2 i
) . Member, Representing the
| - Hon. Justice Fatuma Sichale: Court of Appeal 3 4 4
' ) Member, Representing the
; Hon Justice Anthony HighCourt 3 2
i ' Ndungu
o . Member, Representing The |
Prof. Kiaric Mwaura | University of Nairobi Law 2 |3 1
@ . School |
) L ' Member, Representing the : 3
Ms. Jennifer Gitid | Public 3 2 . | 4 ?
) ' Member, Representing the ' ‘ '
Ms. Janct Kimeu LawSociety of Kenya 3 2 4
® ] ) Member, Representing the
Mr. Michael Muchemni . LawSociety of Kenya . 4 1
Mt. Mwenda Njoka / Member, Representing the
Alternate,Ms. Eva Government Printer 1 4
Kimeiywo
Mr. Henry Rotich/ Member, Representing the
® Alternate, Mr.Jona Wala National Treasury 0
Mr. Long’et Terer Secretary/ CEO 3 4 4 1

Induction and training, Council and member performance

The National Council for Law Reporting (Kenya Law), through the development and implemeritation of its Corporate
® Governance Plan, undertakes the following activities towards the skills enhancement and skills diversification of its
Council members:

i) Council member induction - Newly appointed Council members are inducted into the organization formally in
preparation of the discharge of their functions as members of the Council. The induction process includes an
overview of organizational documents (NCLR Act of 1994, Strategic Plan, Annual Reports, organizational policies
and procedures and the Council Charter). The induction process is further undertaken through training on the

o Mwongozo Code of Conduct by the Institute of Certified Public Secretaries.

i1) Council Training on Corporate Governance - Council members are regularly trained on Corporate Governanceas
facilitated by qualified professionals.

xviil
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ii) Council Technical Training - Council members undertake training on technieal skills required in their
role including financial management, buman resources and administration, internal audit among others.
The trainings are targeted to Council Committees who receive reports from various departments.

iv) Council Appraisal - The Council’s as required by the Mwongozo Code of Conduct and as ascribed to
within the Council Charter undertakes an annual evaluation of its performance.

Through the implementation of its approved Corporate Governance Plan, Kenya Law facilitated the training
of Council members on Corporate Governance between 15th and 161h January, 2020,

Additional training which had been scheduled for the 2019/2020 financial year was postponed due to the
Government’s directives on Training during the COVID-19  pandemic. Kenya Law has developed a
Corporate Governance plan for 2020/2021, incorporating online trainings to be undertaken by the Council.

The Council Livaluation for the IFY 2019/2020 was undertaken with the facilitation of the State Corporations
Advisory Committee (SCAC) on 26th August, 2020,

Conflict of Interest

A conflict of 1nterest may arise where a Council member, employee or close family member such as a spouse,
child, parent or sibling has private interests that could improperly influence the performance of the Council
member or employee’s official duties and responsibilitics.

Conflict may also arise where a Council member or employee uses their office for personal gain.

A real contlict of interest exists at the present time. An apparent conflict of interest could be perceived by a
reasonable observer to exist, whether or notitis the case, and a potential conflict of interest could reasonably
beforeseen to exist in the future.

To prevent of Conflict of Interest, Council members and Kenya Law employees are expected 1o maintain
public confidence in the objectivity of their service by preventing and avoiding situations that could give the
appearanceof a conflict of interest or result in a potential or actual conflict of interest.

Council members and employees of Kenya Law are required to observe the Mwongozo code of conduct and
any specific code of conduct requirements contained in the statutes governing cthical behaviour in their
profession where applicable in the performance of their dutics.

It is not possible to foresee every situation that could give rise o real, apparent or potential conflict of
interest, however, where conflict arises, the Council members or Kenya Law employees are required to excuse
themselves, or anyone who works for them, from any decision-making that may create a conflict of interest
with their private interests and record the same in the Kenya Law Conflict of interest register. They are also
required to observe section 3.1 of the Mwongozo code in the disclosure and management of conflict of
interest.
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7 : : .
. Management Discussion and Analysis

Section A

Operational and Financial Performance

Operational Performance

Kenya Law’s operational performance in the period ending June 2020 was laudable. Kenya Law continued to collect,
compile and disseminate Kenya's legal information through its web site (www.kenyalaw.org) in a timely manner.

Kenya Law achieved very good results in the area of online reporting, collection and uploading and
dissemination of public legal information as well as ptinting of specialised publications.

Below is a brief narrative of Kenya Law’s performance in the year ending 30" June 2020.

% Publication of the Kenya Law Reports

i. Eight (8) Kenya Law Reports printed and deliveted to Kenya Law in the FY 2019-2020;
1. Kenya Law Reports, 2013 Vol. |

Kenya Law Reports, 2013 Vol. 1

Kenya Law Reports, 2013 Vol. 111

Kenya Law Reports, 2015 Vol. ]

KLR, Devolution, Vol. 1

Kenya Law Reports, 1995

Kenya Law Reports, 1996

KLR, Elecdon Pettions, Vol. VI

® N AW

ii. Eleven (11) Kenya Law Reports were at different levels of completion as shown below:

AW REPORTS

11 |KLR, Employment & Labour Relations . 90%complete
12 | KLR, 2016 Vol. I 90% complete
3 |KLR,Environmentand Land Vol. I 90% Complete
4 KLR, 1998 _90% Complete
5 KLR, 2016 Vol. II 80% complete
6 KLR, 2015 Vol. II At 1" Read
L7 KLR, Family Vol. I1 At Layout _
8 KLR, 2017 Vol.I At1"Read
19 KLR, 2017 Vol. 11 At 2"Read
10 KLR, 2018 Vol. I At Technical Proof Reading
11 } KLR Commercial Vol. I At 1" Read
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%  Online Publication of Public Legal Information

i. Uploaded 100 % of judicial decisions collected re. 20,963 judicial decisions from the supetor courts of
record, processed and disseminated them on the Kenya Law website (case law database) in the FY
2019/20.

ii. Uploaded 100% of decisions collected 1.e. 273 decisions from select subordinate courts that include the
Magistrate courts, Kadhis court and the Tribunals; processed and disseminated them on the Kenya Law
website (case law databasc).

Total Judicial decisions collected and uploaded in FY 2019/20;

Court ; No of Decisions
| Supreme Court 78
Court of Appeal 987
High Court 12471
" Environment and Land Court 4,727
j Employment and Labour Relations Court 2,700
' Kadhis Court, Magistrates Court (I:P), PPDT, Cooperative 273
- Tribunal & othertribunals,
| TOTAL 21,236
1ii. Uploaded all causc lists received from the courts on the Kenya Law website (Case law database).
iv. Case backed 4,794 appeal cases to judicial officers.
v. 50 weekly newsletters were compiled and disseminated to Kenya Law subscribers.

% Revision and Updating of the Laws of Kenya

Kenya Law uploaded 100% of all received Acts, Bills, Legal notices, Amendment Acts and Regulations.
Kenya Law collected, processed and uploaded on the Kenya Law website (Laws of the Kenya database) a
sum total of 253 statures as shown below:;

SUPPLEMENT NUMBLER
: Niﬁgﬁn;ﬂ chﬁlmon Acts 22
et Amcndméﬂ( Acts | 6 ‘
Omitlcd A‘cts - 5
Répcalcd . 2>

|
l Legal Notices |4

‘ Bills 0
Total Supplements 253
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Revision Status of the Laws of Kenya

There are a total of 503 Statutes out of which 472 Statutes are up-to-date and 60 are in the process of revision
andupdating. This means that the Laws of Kenya have a 93% revision status.

% Areas identified that require law reform

Judicial opinions are an important tool for evaluating the constitutionality, propriety, effectiveness and utility
of statutory legislation as well as government administrative actions. Therefore, judicial pronouncements
relating to an aspect of constitutional or statutory law or administrative actions that may need reform are an
important driver of the legal and administrative reform process.

In the period under review, Kenya Law identified and highlighted twenty-six (26) Law Reform issues to the
Attorney General and the Kenya Law Reform Commission as indicated below;

i)  Standing Order 64(3) of the County Assembly of Nakuru, which required the issuance of two hours’
notice toa deputy speaker of the County Assembly who faced removal from office, is
unconstitutional. (Samuel Tunoi v Speaker Nakuru County Assembly & 2 others).

i)  Court holds that there is a need to cleatly set out the connecting threads to the provisions of the
Children Act and the Victim Protection Act so as to ensure victims of crime, who are children, are
protected (Daniel Onyondi Moi v Republic).

iif)  Section 62(6) of ACECA which exempted office holders of offices which the Constitution limited or
provided for the grounds upon which such holders could be removed or the office could be vacated
from being suspended from office if charged with cotruption or an economic crime is contrary to
the Constitution (Moses Kasaine Lenolkulal v Director of Public Prosecutions).

iv)  Section 30 of the Nakuru County Finance Act, 2016 is unconstitutional to the extent to which it
putports to levy horticultural cess on the horticulrural exports. (Lake Naivasha Grower Group &
another v County Government of Nakuru [2019] eKLR).

v)  There is need for the formulaton of regulatons to limit the exercise of the right to freedom of
assembly, demonstration and picketing provided under article 37 of the Constitution (Ngunjiri
Wambugu v Inspector General of Police, & 2 others [2019] eKLR).

vi)  Section 84D of the Kenya Information and Communication Act which created the offence of
publishing obscene information declared unconstitutional (Cyprian Andama v Director of Public
Prosecution & another; Article 19 East A frica (Interested Party).

vi) There are no regulations under section 172(a) of the Intemational Crimes Act, for putposes of
prescribing the procedure or steps to be taken upon the issuance of a notice and request, in court
proceedings related to the issuance of a warrant of arrest and surrender by the ICC (Walter Osapiri
Barasa v Cabinet Secretary Ministryof Interior and National Co-ordination & 6 others).

viii) A different way and manner of penalizing KDF soldiers who desert because they are sick should be
recommended in the law. (Stephen Ouma Odede v Republic).

ix)  There was a mix-up in paragraph 15 of the Third Schedule to the Judicial Service Act as related to the
correct numbering of the provisions on the power to interdict and the power to suspend an employee
for disciplinary purposes. (Bryan Mandila Khaemba v Chief Justice and President of the Supreme
Court of Kenya & 2 others).

x)  The sentence for gang rape or gang defilement for a term of not less than fifteen years which could be
enhanced to life imprisonment vis-a-vis the sentence of life imprisonment for defilement is
unreasonable for issuing a lighter sentence. (Francis Matonda Ogeto v Republic [2019] eKLR).

xi)  Prescribing additional minimum qualifications outside the constitutional and legislative scope for
vacant positons in public scrvice is illegal (Wambua Maithya v Pharmacy and Poisons Board;
Pharmaceutical Societyof Kenya & 2 others (Interested Parties) [2019] ¢KLR).

XXii
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x11)

x111)

xiv)

xv)

xvi)

xvii)

Xxi)

Parliament needs to enact a law 1o ensure uniformity in procedures of consideration and approval by

countyassemblies of draft Bills amending the Constitution by popular initiative. (Republic v County
Assembly of Kirinyaga & another Ex-Parte Kenda Muriuki & another [2019] ¢KLR).

There is need to harmonize the regulations under the Environmental Management and Coordination Act,
Survey Act and Physical Planning Act to take into consideration high and low water marks when measuring
and defining riparian reserves. (Milimani Splendor Management Limited v National Environment
Management Authority and 4 others [2019] ¢cKLR).

The legal status of the Council of Governors as it is not a State organ and does not have the capacity
to seck an advisory opinion from the Supreme Court on matters concerning county governments.
(Council of Governors v Attorney General & 7 others [2019] ¢KLR).

Gazette Notice No. 9816 (vol. Cxxi- no. 137) dated 14th October, 2019, appointing the positon of the
Chairperson of the National Employment Authority Board without following the laid out substantive
and procedural, constitutional and statutory requirements applicable in public service appointments, is
unconstitutional, unlawful and irregular for being in contravention of Artcles 10,27,73 (2) and 232 of the
Constitution of Kenya, 2010, (Kenya Young Parliamentarians Association & 2 others v Cabinet Sccretary
abour & Social Protection & 3 others; Institute of uman Resource Management & another (Interested
partics).

Trade Unions Congress of Kenya (I7C-Ke) and COTU plus such other federanon of trade untons as
may exist as duly registered by the Registrar of Trade unions should enter a memorandum of
understanding towards constituting the umbrella body representing trade unions for future nomination of
a person for appointment as a member of SRC under Article 230 (2) (c) (i) of the Constitution as read
with sections 4, 5, 6, and 7 ofthe Salaries Remuneration Commission Act 10 of 2011 or in alternative,
legislative intervention be invoked towards designating the umbrella body representing trade unions in
that regard. (I'rade Unions Congress of Kenya (TUC-Ke) v Joseph Kinyua, Head of Public Service &
another; National Assembly & 2 others (Interested Parties) [2020] eIKLR).

The Board needs o bring the Guidelines in need of exercising the rating all audio-visual advertisements,
inform and consider television and radio programmes before public broadeast under the ambit of the law
one (1) year from the date of the judgment. (Wanuri Kahiu & another v CEO - Kenya Film Classification
Board Fzekiel Murua & 2 others; Article 19.

East Africa (Interested Party) & Kenya Christian Professionals Form (Proposed Interested Party) [2020)
¢KLR).

There is need for legislative guidance on the exercise of constitutional supervisory jurisdiction. (Director
of Public Prosccutions v Perry Mansukh Kansagara & 8 others).

There is need to clarify on the exact timelines within which the Division of Revenue Bill and the County
Allocation of Revenue Bill can be introduced to Parliament which would call for amendments to Articles
218 and 221 of the Constitution of Kenya, 2010 and sections 190 and 191(1) of the Public Finance
Management Act. (Council of Governors & 47 others v Attorney General & 3 others (1 nterested Parties);
Katiba Institute &2 others (Amicus Cunae).

There is a legal lacuna as the Retirement Benefits Act and the Trust Deed and Rules do not clearly provide
that the death of a pensioner automatically lapses the contract. (Kenya Commercial Bank v Isaac Ingati
Abong’ & Another).
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Sections of law that were declared unconstitutional by various judicial decisions:

i) Section 66(1) of the Marriage Act on petition for separation or dissolution of civil marriages only after
threeyears declared unconstitutional for being discriminatory and violating the right to human dignity
and access to justice (Tukero ole Kina v Attorney General & another [2019] ¢KLR)

i)  Section 64(4)(b) of the Energy Act, 2006 (repealed) / section 168 of the Energy Act, 2019 is
unconstitutional for providing mandatory minimum sentences for the offence of vandalism (Michael
Kasamani and another vRepublic (2019] ¢KLR)

iii)  Statute Law (Miscellancous Amendments) Act No 12 of 2012 declared unconstitutional for effecting
substantive amendments to the law and for violating the principle of public participation (Law
Society of Kenya v Attorney General & 2 others [2019] ¢KLR)

iv)  Section 16(14) of the Merchant Shipping Act, which allows a body not wholly owned by Government
but inwhich it has a majority shareholding to operate a port in Kenya, declared unconstitutional for
lack of publicparticipation (Dock Workers Union & 2 others v Attorney General & 2 others; Kenya
Ports Authority & 4 others (Interested Parties) [2019] eKLR)

v)  Paragraph 23 of the Third Schedule to the Judicial Service Act that takes away judicial officers’
entitlement to reports or recorded reasons for decisions rendered against them declared
unconstitutional (Simon Rotich Ruto v Judicial Service Commission & another [2019] eKLR)

vi)  Kiambu County Water and Sanitation Scrvices Amendment Act 2018 declared unconstitutional for
lack of public participation. (George Ngotho & 26 others v Governor of Kiambu County & 6 others
[2019] eKLR)

% Areas of divergence in Judicial Reasoning

Judicial Reasoning refers both to the process of thought by which a judge reaches a conclusion as to the
appropriate result in a case, and to the written explanation of that process in a published judgment. The
reasons for a decision give an objective analysis and the underlying processes of thought involved in
exploring and resolving a legal problem. Legal problems are usually so complex and variable that there is no
one-way of reaching a sct conclusion. Various judges may use different reasoning to come up with conflicting
decision over similar facts of a case.

In the financial Year 2019/2020, Kenya Law identified five (5) issues of divergence in judicial reasoning by
the Courts of record as highlighted below:
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1

Issue

Whether judicial review
applications should be
determined based on
merits of the decision

being  challenged  or
based on procedure
only.

Whether Magistrate

Courtshave the
Junsdiction to  handle
claims arising out of the
Work Injury Benefits
Act

Judicia) Reasoning

Court of Appeal:

Municipal Council of Mombasa v Republic & another [2002) eKILR. ... judicial
reviewwas concerned with the decision-making process and not with the menits of
the decision itself.

Peninah Nandako Kiliswa v Independent Elections & Boundaries Commussion &
2 others [2014] ¢KLR, ... the Court was not concemed with the merits of the
impugned decision of an inferior trbunal rather it was ...concerned with the
tribunal’s decision making process, to ensure that it had not acted without or in
excess of jurisdiction,and that 1t has observed the rules of natural justice.

Divergence views:

Suchan Investment Limited v Ministry of Nauonal Heritage & Culture & 3 others
| [2016] eKI.R .. judicial review was not concerned with the merits of the case.
%Hnwcvcr, Section 7(2)(1) of the Fair Administrative  Action  Act provides
i proportionality as a ground for statutory judicial review...proportionality invited

E the court to evaluate the ments of the decision.

|

; High Court:

| Kenya Huaman Rights Comnussion v Non-Governmental Organisations Co-
{ Ordination Board [2016] ¢KLR, ..the court had a duty to look into not only the
| merits and legality of the decision made due to the requirement of reasonable
Laction under Articled7 of the Constitution, but also the process and procedure
adopted .. following all precepts of natural justice under both Arucles 47 and 50(1)
of the Consttution.

High Court:

Juma Nyamawi Ndungo & 5 others v Attorney General; Mombasa Law Society
(Interested Party) [2019] e KLR

Section 16 and 33(2)(d) and 53(2)(c) of the Work Injury Benefits Act entailed a

to the Work Injury Benefits Act were unconstitutional as they promoted the exercise
of judicial powers by the Dircctor who was neither an independent tribunal nor a
court.

‘ Court of Appeal:

Law Society of Kenya Nairobs Branch v Malindi Law Society & 6 others [2017)]
eKIL.R

...the close proximity of Magistrates Courts to the people ensured cfficiency
andaccess to justice at a reasonable cost it would be illogical and
unreasonable to

prohibit Magistrates Courts from determining land and employment disputes.

(i Anorney General v Law Society of Kenya & another [2017] ¢KLR
nothingin Sections 16, 23 and 52(2) of the Work Injury Benefits Act was contrary
to the Constitution or discriminatory.

Section 23 which gave the Director jurisdiction to hear claims for injuries and

diseases which were work-related was not unconstitutional.

usurpation of judicial power by the Executive and were therefore unconstitutional. |
Sections 10, 23,26, 28,30, 33, 37, 51, 53(2) (d), 53(2) (¢), 58 (2) and the first schedule |




£

w

Whether there is a right of

Whether Sccuon 166 of llm b

Criminal procedure
Code is Constitutional.

\’hether Statc or publxc
officers involved in
corruption cases should be
allowed access to their
offices

appeal from the High Court
pursuant to Section 35 of
the Arbitration Act

miscarnage of justice.

— DR S - '
Republic v E N W [2019] ¢KLR ..... Executive power had constitutional and
statutoryunderpinning. Section 166 (5) was constitutional.

Republic v G N M [2018] ¢KLR

chubhc v §

Executive
.. Section 166 of the CPC went contrary to article 160 of the Constitution

and wasunconstitutional.

B R O v Republic {2018] ¢KLR

Provisions that impose an indeterminate sentence ... by an authorty other

than thecourts violated the right to freedom from torture and cruel, inhuman

or degrading treatment or punishment; the right to a fair trial; the equality

and freedom from discrimination and the deprivation of freedom arbitrarily

or without jusl cause.

O M [2018] eKLR, .....by vesting discretionary power on the

(" fo)

Moses Knsamc Lenolkulal v Director of Public Prosecutions [2019] eKLR,
Section 62(6) of ACECA was contrary to the constitutional requirements of
integrity in governance; National values and principles of governance;
Principles of leadership and integrity in Chapter Six of the Constitution. . ..in
so doing, they entrenched corruption and impunity in the land.
Similarly, in Ferdinand Ndungu Waititu Baba;ao & 12 others v Republic
[2019] ¢KILR,

. it was reasonable for the trial court to attach conditions to inhibit access
to the Kiambu County Government offices.
Divergence view:
Muhammed Abdalla Swazuri & 16 others v Republic [2018] ¢KLR,
....constitutional office holders ...are exempted by virtue of Section 62(6) of

ACECA.
Court of Appyg!' ‘ o o

DHL Excel Supply Chain Kenya Limited v. Tilton Investments Limited [2017]
¢KI.R, The court had jurisdiction to entertain an appeal under Section 35 of
the Arbitration Act. The fact that Section 35 was silent on whether such a
decision was appealable to thecourt by itself did not bar the right of appeal.

Kutji and another v. Shalimar Limited and Others [2006] eKLR, the Court
granted lc'wc to appml against the decision of the High Court.

iveree
Nyutu Agrovu lextcd v. Airtel Networks Limited [201 5] eKLR, The Court
did not have jurisdiction to entertain any appeal arising from Section 35 of
the Arbitration Act.

Micro-House Technologies Limited v Co-operative College of Kenya [2017]
¢KLR, The Court did not have jurisdiction to entertain the appeal and the
appellant had no rightof appeal having not obtained leave under Section 39(3)
(b) of the Arbitration Act.

Supreme court;
Synergy Industrial Credit Limited v Cape Holdings Limited [2019] ¢KLR

.once an award was issued, an aggrieved party could only approach the High
Cuurt for setting aside the award, on specified grounds and hence, the
purpose of Section 35 of the Arbitmtion Act was to ensure that courts were
able to correct specific errors of law, which if left alone would lead to a

XXV




ANNUAL REPORT OND FINANC VL STATEMENTS 14 JOTHE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

% International ] urisprudence
Comparative analysis of judicial decisions from Kenya and other jurisdictions:

Judicial decisions from regional and international adjudicating bodies form persuasive precedent which while
not binding on courts, is useful or relevant and may guide the judge in making the decision in a current
case. Forthis reason, Kenya Law monitors, tracks and reports international junisprudence. The international
jurisprudence cases provide a comparative analysis of judicial decisions form Kenya and other jurisdictions.
Kenya Law reportedfourteen (14) cases on emerging arcas of jurisprudence namely:

i. Threshold that defamatory statements have to meet so as to cause serious harm to a person’s

reputation or body trading for profit (BL v Independent Print Ltd and another [2019] UKSC
27)Supreme Court of the United Kingdom.

1. The proper forum for challenging a partner state’s commitiee’s decision is before national courts and
not the East African Court of Justice (M/S Quick Telecommunications Services v Attorney General of
the UnitedRepublic of Tanzania Reference No. 10 of 2016).

East African Court of Justice

. Prorogation of Parliament is unlawful if it has the cffect of frusirating or preventing the ability of
Parliament to carry out its constitutional functions without reasonable justification (R (on the
application of Miller) v the Prime Minister; Cherry and others v Advocate General for Scotland [2019]
UKSC 41)

Supreme Courr of the United Kingdom.

iv.  The parental status of ‘mother’ is the status afforded to a person who undergoes the physical and
biological process of carrying a pregnancy and giving birth irrespective of their legal gender (The
Queen (on the application of TT) v Registrar General for England and Wales; Seeretary of State for
Health and Social Care & 3 others (Interested Parties) Case No FID18F00035).

High Court of Justice

v.  Compensation for breaches of data protection legislation that’s resultant in a loss of control of personal
data, sought through a representative action can be awarded without proof of distress or any material
damage (Richard Lloyd v Google LLC [2019] EWCA Civ 1599).

vi.  Parenral administration of reasonable and moderate chastisement to children is unconstitutional for
infringing the doctrine of best interests of the child (Freedom of Rehigion South Africa v Minister of
Justice and Constitutional Development and Others [2019] ZACC 34),

Constiturional Court of South Africa

vii)  Offhandedly dismissing the remedies available within 2 respondent state by applicants without
attempting to activate them leads to inadmissibility of an application before an international court
(Shukrani Mascgenya Mango & Others v United Republic of Tanzania Application No. 008/2015)

African Court on Human and Peoples’ Rights

viii)  ‘Person acting in an official capacity’ under UNCAT includes a person acting in an official capacity on
behalf of an entity exercising governmental control over a civilian population in a tetritory over which
it exercise defacto control whether in peace time or in armed coaflict. (R v TRA [2019] UKSC 31)
ix) A relationship between two parties which is not sufficiently analogous to employment does not
make it fair, just and reasonable to impose vicarious liability.
(Barclays Bank plc v Various Claimants [2020) UKSC 13.
x) A non-member state national parent of a European Union (EU) citizen child resident within the
EUis  entitledto reside in the EU solely to aveid the EU citizen child being deprived of the
substance of their Union citizenshiprights on removal of the non-member state national parent
from the EU.
(Patel v Secretary of State for the Iome Department: Seeretary of State for the Home Depariment v
Shah [2019] UKSC 59).
Supreme Court of the United Kingdom

'
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Annotations beneath statutory provisions authored by an arm of legislature in the course of its
legislative duties are incligible for copyright protection.

(Georgia v Public Resource.Org, Inc. 590 U. S (2020)
Supreme Courr of the United States
iL. Supreme Court of Appeal of Malawi affirms the High Court decision declaring undue election and
orderingfresh clection for the office of the President.
(Arthur Peter Mutharika & another v Electoral Commission & another MSCA Constitutional Appeal
No 1 of 2020)
Supreme Court of Appeal of Malawi

i. A service member of the Regular Force ought to be treated as having never been convicted nor
sentencedonce the charges on which he was initially convicted and sentenced are set aside on appeal.
(Mozamane Teapson Maswangayi v Minister of Defence and Military Veterans and Others [2020) ZACC
4CCT170/19)

Constitutional Court of South Aftica

% Development of Specialized Digests

In recognition of the increasing specialization of legal practice in the country, Kenya Law publishes
specialized lawdigests on various topical issues to ensure the dissemination of legal information in simplified
easy to understand formats. Three (3) specialized digests were developed during the period under review:

i) Compendium of Rulings on Bail and Bond

The Compendium of rulings on Bail and Bond Volume 2 was a follow up publication to the first volume
which tracked decisions on the implementation of the Bail and Bond Policy Guidelines intended to guide
police and judicial officers in the application of laws on bail and bond. The two publications wete launched
by the Bail and Bond Implementation Committee in February 2020.

ii) Specialized Digest on Alternative Dispute Resolution (ADR)

The case digest on decisions in alternative dispute resolution law and practice in arbitration highlights the
emerging jurisprudence in arbitration practice including the issue whether in the absence of an express
provision of a right of appeal in an arbitration agreement a party to arbitral proceedings has a right of
appeal to the Court of Appeal from a decision of the High Court given under section 35 of the
Arbitration Act; and issues dealing with conflicting decisions of the high court on the interpretation of
certain sections of the Arbitration Act. The publication was funded by the International Development
Law Organization (IDLO).

iii) Specialized Digest on the Big 4 Action Plan

As a state corporation, Kenya Law plays a key role as an enabler of the Big 4 Action Plan. Kenya Law is
publishing the first series of the Big 4 Action Plan Digest (the Digest) containing a compendium of case
law containing precedents emerging from legal jurisprudence relating to the Big 4 Action Plan. 23. The
Big 4 Action Plan Casc Digest was 80% campleted at the end of the year.

iv) Kenya Law Review Journal

Kenya Law Review Journal Volume 6 No. 2 and 7 No.1 were printed. Call for articles for Kenya Law
Review Journal Vol 7 No.2 were on-going and at 10% completion by the end of the year.

v)  Bench Bulletin

Issues 45, 46, 47 and 48 were printed and disseminated to stakcholders. Calls from the various
departments for content for issue 49 were still on-going and at 30% by the end of the year.
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% Providing Access to Other Public 1 wgal Information through Digitization

Kenya Law secks 1o enrich the information on its website by providing public Jegal information in a digital

format.In the peniod under review, the following were acquured and digitized:

1) Kenya Gazettes Volumes (hardcopies and softcopics) — June 2019 - June 2020 — 60 Volumes.

i) Law Reports, Digest and Text Books — 4 - East Africa Law Reports 2017 — 4 volumes.

1ii) Kenya gazette supplement - 102. ®

iv) Bills from Parliament Archive (1956-2002) - 50.

v) Copies of parliament proceedings — 214 - National Assembly ~ 121, Senate — 93,

vi) Circulars — 135 - Public service- 24, National Treasury- 19, Central Bank — 12, Salaries and remuneration
Commission- 29, Public Procurement Oversight Authority- 24, Capital Matket Authority- 11, Ministry of
education ~ 2 and Teachets Service Commission- 14, @

vii) Committee Reports — 122 - Justice and Legal Affairs Committee — 31, Public Accounts Committee
Reports — 37, Public Investment Committee Reports — 27, Committee Reports on Agriculture — 3,
Education, Research &Amp; Technology Committee Reports — 5

»

viit) Budget Committee Reports- 8, Committee Reports on Energy, Communication and Public
Works — 2, Committee Reports on Health, Housing, Labour and Social Welfare- 6, Committee Reports ®
on Defence and Foreign Relations — 1 and Committee Reports on Local Authorities- 2.

% Enhanced access to the public legal information through ICT::
Kenya Law digitized and disseminated 100% of all legal information received through the Kenya Law website.
Publicaccess to this online platform was as follows:

i.  The Case law database coniains rulings and dgments from the Superior Courts of record. A total of @
1,063,939 users viewed this database in the year ending June 2020 as compared to 687 385 users in the
year ending June2019.

ii. The Laws of Kenya database contains all the acts of Parliament and corresponding subsidiary legislation. A
totalof 252,944 users viewed this database in the year ending June 2020 as compared to 428,054 users in
the yearending June 2019,

ili. The Kenya Law website contains assorted material such as Cause Lists, Kenya Gazettes, Judicial profiles,
amongothers. A total of 198,160 users viewed the website in the year ending fune 2020 as compared to
193,503 usersin the year ending June 2019.

iv. The Kenya Law blog contains various reading materials such as case summarics from Kenya and
other commonwealth countries, conference papers, speceches and Kenya Law news. A total of 116,797
users viewedthe blog in the year ending June 2020 as compared to 111,639 users year ending June 2019, )

v. Kenya Law’s website had a 97% daily uptime and was sccured by the most up to date security hardware
and software.

vi. Kenya Legislation Database - The implementation of the Beta version of Laws of Kenya Online
Editor is currently on going and is 70% complete. Training of staff members from Laws of Kenya,

Research & Development and 1CT was carried out on the system.
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% Financial Performance
Revenues Received

Kenya Law received 99.6% of all the revenues planned as at 30" June 2020. A total of Kshs. 362.81
Million was received out of the total planned of Kshs. 364.3 Million. This is as compared to 94%, 98%
and 85% in the past threc financial years of 2018/19, 2017/18 and 2016/17 tespectively.

% Revenue Received
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Personnel Emoluments to Total Revenue

The percentage of Personnel Emoluments expenditure as compared to Total Revenue was 36% indicating
that 36% of all Kenya Law revenues are utilized in paying salaries, wages and pension expenses as
compated to therecommended 35%. This was a better percentage as compared to 39% in 2018/2019, 35%
in the FY2017/18 and 45% in the FY 2016/17 respectively.
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fii. Personnel Emoluments to Total Expenditure

The percentage of Personnel Emoluments expenditure as compared to Total Expenditure was 35%
indicating that 35% of all Kenya l.aw recurrent expenditures are salaries, wages and pension expenses as
compared to the recommended 35%. This was a better percentage as compared to 42% in the FY
2018/2019,40% in the FY 2017/18 and 47% in the FY 2016/17 respectively.

% PE Emoluments 1o Total Expenditure
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iv. Growth in Total Assets

Kenya Law had a healthy Balance sheet in the period ending 30" June 2020. Total Assets grew by 11.2%
as compared 1o 6.3% and 19% in 2018/19 and 2017/18 respectively. There was however a decline in
growth of 3% in FY 2016/17.
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v. Reduction in Liabilities

However, Total Liabilities also grew by 27% as compared to 1% in the previous year indicating an
increase in Kenya Law’s obligations to third parties. This was mainly due to commitments in the year
2019/2020 that had not been paid off by the end of the year. These were accrued as liabilities to be paid
in the subsequent financial year. Growth in the FY 2017/18 was 1% and a reduction of 11% in FY
2016/17.
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vi. Current Ratio

vii.

The liquidity of Kenya Law was also healthy. The Current ratio as at 30™ June 2020 was 5 as compared
to 17as at 30" June 2019. This indicates that Kenya Law had Kshs, 5 worth of Assets available to pay
Kshs. 1 worth of Liabilitics as at 30" June 2020 as compared to Kshs. 17 worth of Asscts available to pay
Kshs. 1 worth of Liabilities as at 3(.1"".]1111(' 2019, Kshs. 24 worth of Assets available 1o pay Kshs. 1 worth of
Liabilitics as at 30™ June 2018 and Kshs. 17 worth of Asscrs available 1o pay Kshs. | worth of Liabilities as
at 30" Junc 2017,

The Current Ratio
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Quick (Acid Test) Ratio

The Quick (Acid Test) ratio was 2 as compared (o 8 as at 30™ June 2019. This indicates that Kenya Law had
Kshs. 2worth of Quick convertible Assets available to pay Kshs. T worth of Liabilitics as at 30™ June 2020 as
compared toKshs, 8 worth of Assets available to pay Kshs. 1 worth of Liabilities as at 30" June 2019, Kshs.
10 worth of Assets available to pay Kshs. 1 worth of Liabilities as at 30™ June 2018 and Kshs. 6 worth of
Assets available 10 pay Kshs. 1 worth of Liabilities as at 30" June 2017,

The Quick {Acid Test) ratio
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i
L
-

vii) Gearing Ratio

1®
Kenya Law had zero gearing (debt) ratio, indicating that it was not funded by any debt in the year
ending30" Junc 2020.
viii) Comparative Expenditures
® The comparative expenditures for the two years 2018/2019 and 2019/2020 arc also depicted in the figure
below showing the trend of the various expenditure heads to total recurrent expenditure on a comparative
basis.
Comparative Expenditure Comparative Expenditure
® 2018/2019 2019/2020
Bank Goods
and
Rank Goods and
charges Services
0%% 8%
D
o
®
. Board
Lu'c::‘u::d Remuneratio
5% Board o
Depreen CpRIs . llcm‘l)mcnli Contn’\ctc
) and maintenance o d services : Ao
Acmot 2% 1% % 1% 3%
% Growth and Strategies:
@ i) Acquisition of ICT systems for legal publishing

Revision and consolidation of the Laws of Kenya is 2 manual and cumbersome process. Kenya Law
embarked on the acquisition of the Kenya Legislative Database (KLD); a highly automated and user-
friendly ICT system that will allow higher efficiency in real time publication of the laws though an
online portal.
@D In addition, this system will give Kenya Law the option to segregate data so that premium content of
publiclegal information may be presented in a pay platform and accessed at a fee. This will improve
Kenya Law’srevenues and ensurc sustainability of its programs.
Additionally, Kenya Law commenced a consultancy towards improving the Case law database so as to
increase cfficiencies in workflows and provide a much better user experience on the front end.
This systemis anchored on the most up to date technology to ensure that judicial decisions are
properly capturedand tracked thus ensuring ease of navigation of the numerous judicial decisions
archived in the case law database.

Kenya Law has streamlined its procedures for review of judicial decisions by ensuring that case edits
are reviewed before presentation to the wecekly case selection meetings. This has improved the quality
of case edits being generated while enabling the weekly selection meetings to be undertaken much

® faster and theiroutcome reported promptly. This has therefore ensured that the organisation is able
to generate quality case edits that are disseminated promptly on a weekly basis.

XXXl




A\

VNNUAL REPORT AND FINANCEUAT STATEMENES FOR T FIN AN MEYEAR ENDEL JUNL 30, 2020

i) The organization has changed and refined us approach o print publications by proritizing

9.

iii.

V.

publications and working on one publication at a time so as o regularize umeliness in output.
This means that the organisation is now more consistent in its projections on the print
publicatons that will be finalized as the work flow processes for this have been mapped out and
strictly adhered to.

Kenya Law continues 1o engage the 47 County Assemblies to ensure that County Acts and Bills are

collected anddisseminated through its online platforms.

Enhanced Legal I'ramework

Kenya Law is in the process of reviewing its founding law (National Council for Law Reporting Act,
Act No. 11 of 1994) with the objective of providing an enhanced legal framework for the operations
of the organisation.

Opportunitics:
Updated 1CT systems for Legal Publishing

Kenya Law relies on 1CT systems for the processing and dissemination of public legal information.
Updating of these systems provides an opportunity {or improved internal efficicncies that will directy
translate to better service delivery 1o citizens. The main objective of these systems s to have a
customized platfann that will provide 2 well-coordinaed approach 1o collection, compiling,
amendment and review all lepal intonmation recetved and processed by Nenya Law. Implementation
of the Laws of Kenya and Case Law database systems are on-going.

Improvement of Revenue Collections

Kenya Law is in the process of reviewing the modalities for dissemination of legal information with
the objective of segrepating premium from the free content that it gencrates. In doing so, Kenya Law
will be able to continue providing free access to public legal information to the general citizenry whilst
providing a paidfor service to more specialized groups thal require public legal information that has
some value addition c.g. Kenya Law Reports would be disseminated online at a fee as opposed to
actual print copics. The use of [CT systems to provide these services is expected to enhance revenue
collecton.

Publishing and printing of Kenya Law Reports

The use of lightweight coated paper on print publications that will increase the number of pages in a
Kenya Law Report from 800 10 1300 allowing for more cases 1o be featured for any given yeat.

Increased digitization

There is an ongoing effort to increase digitization i the judiciary that will make it possible for Kenya
Law to receive rulings and judgments in real time as and when they are delivered.

Collection and Publication of County Legislation

The devolved system of government has increased the pumber of institutions (hat generate public
legal information and this has created an opportuntty for Kenya Law to enhance its volume and
portfolio of data.
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.
%. i.  Insufficient budgetary allocations have limited Kenya Law’s 1bility to deliver on its mandate as per the
strategic plan. The current funding totals to only 65% of its most realistic annual budgetary
thum,mcnts This has necessitated the otganization to cut back on its programmes and activities to
fit into the available funding.

i ii. Insufficient Human Resources: Kenya Law is operating at 44% of its staff establishment which has
primarilybeen caused by the limited budgetary allocations. Out of a staff establishment of 163, Kenya
® Law only has72 officers in post, leading to work overload that affects the timely ptoductxon of quahty
outputs. This may be put in context by considering the growth that has occutred in the Judiciary in
the last 10 years. There has been a 164% increment in the number of judges from 58 in 2010 to 149
in the year 2020;there has been a 135% increase in the number of court stations from the year 2010 to
date; there has been a 342% increase in the number of judicial decisions collected from the year 2010 to
® date: while the number of Law Reporters has increased by only 36% from 7 to 11 officers in the same
, period. Kenya Law requires additional funding to recruit 20 additional law reporters and 20 legal
rescarchers to cope with the increasednumber of judicial decisions delivered daily.

% Challenges:

ii.  Kenya Law has not been able to continuously upgrade and improve its ICT infrastructure to the
required standards. Kenya Law relies heavily on current ICT systems to ensure the proper processing,
storage and dissemination of legal information. It currcntl\' holds 55 TB worth of public lcgal

@ information. The inability to upgrade and improve hardwarc and software systems has a negauve
impact on its core mandate in terms of enhancing data mtcgmy and safety to the most optimum
levels. The challenges included;

o Highly specialized systems that require advanced costly training which could not be carried out
due tothe limited funds.

®
e Obsolescence of computer hardware and technology. Hardware related issues that have led to
break down of machines. Software challenges c.g. few Adobe Pro applications on publishing
hardware and limited spaceon google -email causing work dclays.
¢  Dynamic nature of ICT systems which require constant upgrades at a cost.
e * Intermittent Internet leading to the need to increase Internet bandwidth requirements, with

limited financing,

iv. Kenya Law works with various players in the justice and legal sector to collect process and

disseminate public legal information. As such, some of these processes are outside the control of the

. organization e.g. sending of the rulings and judgements, cause lists, approval of the Annual

[ Supplement etc. Any delay by any one of the actors involved in the production of public legal
information has a negative impact on its ability to deliver on its mandate.

v.  Balancing the number of cases in print publications given the numerous numbers of cases, the diverse

areas of litigation, length of judgments and areas of law given the number of cases that can be

accommodated ina Kenya Law Report.
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Section B

with statutory requi

Kenya Law published judicial decisions received from the superior courts of record online and also published
the Kenya Law Reports in compliance with the National Council for Law Reporting Act (No. 11 of 1994).

Kenya Law updated all the Laws of Kenya ensuring compliance with the Revision of Laws Act (CAP 1). Kenya
Law also adhered to the Legal and repulatory frameworks issued by the Government of Kenya to ensure
| compliance with the statutory requirements under the Constitution, the Public Finance Management Act 2012,
Public Procurement and Disposal of Assets Act 2015 and the Employment Act No.11 of 2007. In addition,
Kenya Law endeavored to fulfill it corporate governance obligations i adherence to the Mwongozo code.

|

Section C

Key projects and investment deciSios that Kenya Law is planningZimplémenting

Kenya Law has procured ICT svstems for processing, storage and dissemination of Public legal information
(both Case Law and Laws of Kenya). The acquisition and implementation of these systems has been phased out |
| commencing in the financial year 2019/2020. The two systems are both under implementation,

Section D
Major risks facing Kenya 1aw:
Financial risk

!Kenya Law requires additional 1unds 10 fully discharge 1ts mandate. The organizational approved budget is

i about 65% of the ideal budget. Further, Kenya Law’s Human Resource costs constituted 36 o (compared 1o the

- recommended level of 35%0) of the 1ol budgeted revenues. This has deprived Kenya Law of additonal funds

to deliver on its core mandate and other critical activites, The limited financial resources have meant that |
Kenya Law has not fully discharged all its activities as envisaged in the Strategic Plan 2018-2023 due to constant |
reorganization of activities to fit within the available resource ceilings.

Operational risk |

Kenya Law is operating at 44% of its seaf( compliment (72 officer’s vis a vis a staff establishment of 163) and |
this has negatively impacted on 1« ability to discharge its mandaue in a timely manner as staff have to muliask |
and work long hours. The tumaronund tme for production of ume bhound publications has therefore increased |
and there is a rolling backlog of publications for print. The umely preparation and dissemination of public legal |
information through the website has also been nepatively alfected. Kenya Law collects revenae through the sale |
of its publications. The collection of debts from debtors of the organization has posed a challenge especially in |
relation to public sector agencics that may not prioritize payment of their obligations to Kenya Law for |
products nlrcad)' sold to them. There is a risk that the debts from public institutions, which are more than 3 ‘
years old, may not be paid thus negatively affecting the operations of the organization, !

Section E

Material ar

ars In statutory/ finaneial obligations

Kenya Law had no material arrears in statutory/ financial obligations. There was a total of Kshs. 4,766,871.34 |
due as payroll deductions for HELB, NSSI, NHIF, Insurances deductions, mortgage, staff pension and welfare ;
obligations, Audit fees and withholding VAT payments for the month of June 2020. ‘

Section F

ncial probity and serious goy

cmance 5 LDl G | L
The Council is responsible for the policy framework in relation to the institution’s rigk management and |
internal controls. The Finance and General Purposes Committee of the Council is responsible for the policy
framework to ensure proper financial planning and execution of the financial management function. The Audit
I & Risk Management Committee of e Council regularly reviews the effectiveness of the internal controls and
| provides assurance on the implementaton of financial plans by regular reporting to the full Council.

' The Internal Audit and Risk Department implements Kenya Law's risk management framework in all business
| processes and reports regularly 1o the Editor and the Audit & Risk Management Committee,
% In addition, the Office of the Auditor General performs systems audits 1o independently review the |
| effectiveness of the mstmtonal risk management framework. It also does financial audits at the cnd of the |
financial period o provide assurance on the credibility of the annual financial statements.

There were no serious governance issucs in the Council, any Council member, the top management in relation to
| conflict of interest, financial impropriety or Council composition in the execution of its functions in the year.
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9. Corporate Social Responsibility Statement/Sustainability Reporting

ii.

iii.

Sustainability strategy and profile

Kenya Law has had many positive developments in this financial year. We operate in a dynamic
environment with scarce resources influenced by a host of socio-cconomic, legal and political factors that
impinge on our operationsand impact the realization of our objectives. The achievement of our objectives
largely depends on how well we have leveraged internal strengths to exploit external opportunities as well
as how well we have managed internal weaknesses to avoid the crysiallization of external threats.

We have aligned our programmes and activities to the overall national development agenda espoused in
the socio-cconomic development blueprints. We have enhanced the synergy amongst members of staff and
between departments for the overall success of the institution. We have enhanced teamwork, learning,
innovation and creativity to facilitate effective inter and intradepartmental co-ordination, exposure to
industry trends, as wellas acceptance and effective management of positive change.

All activitics within the organization incorporate international best practices in an effort to protect the
ecosystem in which Kenya Law exists, providing us with opportunitics to achieve a competitive advantage
in our products and services. Further Kenya Law has a new Quality Management System based on ISO
9001:2015 and is ISO certified. Kenya Law continually strives to achieve the highest standards of quality
and to continually improve its effectiveness in order to ensure sustainability. Our established quality
objectives and policies are also reviewed on an annual basis.

Environmental performance

Kenya Law does not have an environmental policy but rather borrows largely from the Government of
Kenya policy on protecting the environment and increasing the forest cover by 10% in the medium term. To
supplement Government efforts in this area, Kenya Law encourages its employees to print back to back.
Kenya Law has also changed its strategy from printing of hard copy publications to soft copy online
publications in order to reduce on paper printing. Kenya Law also participates in tree planting exercises.
Kenya Law has signed an MOU with the Kenya Forest Service (IKI°S) to support in the efforts to reclaim
forest cover to the tune of Kshs 266,552. In the current year, Kenya Law participated in the Ingo Forest
challenge marathon and donated 500 scedlings to help reclaim and increase the forest cover of the
Kakamega Forest through tree planting. The theme of the 2019 marathon was “running to restore and
conserve”. Kenya Law also participatedin a tree planting exercise organized by the office of the Attorney
General in Ngong Forest as its contribution to the larger Government of Kenya strategy towards
increasing Kenya’s forest cover to 10% by 2022.

Employee welfare

Kenya Law has put in place policies and procedutes guiding the appointment of employees within the
organisation. There is an claborate guideline on the recruitment process of employees from the initial
stages of placing advertisement to filling in the vacant positions. Kenya Law is an equal opportunity
employer; it takes a consistent and standard approach in the recruitment and selection of employces.
Therefore, the recruitment process is void of discrimination on the basis of gender, HIV status, race,
ethnicity marital status and/or physical disability. This is provided in the Kenya Law Human Resources
Policies and Procedures Manual, 2016.

Employee skills and competences are enhanced in the workplace through Training and development
initiatives which are competency based, geared towards capacity building and mecting the needs of the
organisation. Training and Development programs are aimed at helping each employee prepare for
changes as they align themselves with the changing needs. Training needs assessments are carried out to
identify the competency gaps existing with the organisation with an aim of addressing the skills gap
through training and development programs.




iv.

The Organisation has put i performance management measurement mechanisms through the use of a

comprehensive Performance Management Appraisal System that guides the evaluation and monitoring of

employee performance. The process helps in identifying performance problems and solving them. The

process involves setting performance targets and reviewing them over a period of time. The outcomes of

performance management inform staff training and development, career progression, succession
management, promotions, pesformance incentives and performance improvement strategics.

Kenya Law recognizes that the safety of employees, stakceholders and property at work is crtical. All
Employees must take responsibility for cnsuring that safe working procedures are adhered to. It is a legal
requirement for organizations to have in place a health and Safety committee as per the OSHA
requirements. The organizational safety and health committee members are champions for a healthy and
safe workplace. Tnformation on health and Safety to prevent possible health and safety risks is provided to
employees through sensitization initiatives to ensure a safe work environment. Appropriate insurances are
also put in place to cushion apainst health and safety risks.

Market place practices

In pursuit of its mandate, Kenya Law always considers various policy documents including  the
Constitution of Kenya, the Montreal Declaration on Free Aceess to Law, the Big Four Agenda, the

Kenya Vision 2030, the Sustaining Judiciary Transformation Framework of 20172021 and the Office of

the Attorney General and Deparement of Justice Strategic Plan. These documents act as a beacon for the
organization in the dav to dav cxecution of s mandare and to the ofticers discharging the relevant duties
in various arcas. Owuside ol the Tact tha Kenya Law 1s the instututon mandated by law o publish law
reports and update the laws of Kenya, the organization strives (o ensure responsible competition practices
whenever it issues tenders and in its bid to bring promote fair procurement practices. The institution has
implemented corruption prevention strategies and a risk mitigation plan to address risks and loopholes in
its legal and policy environment. Regulations, processes, and procedures guiding the core mandate of the
organization are in place and all identified risks have a mitigationplan,

Kenya Law has also ensured in its supply chain o follow the laid down procurement laws when ssuing
tendersand dealing with supplicrs. All supplicrs are paid on time and all contracts honored in full upon
satisfactory delivery of goods /services, A schedule of all running contracts is kept and updated monthly
and where onc is about to lap-c, the same s communicated 10 advance 1o the relevan personned o effect
a seamnless (ransition where neeessary. Al transactions are documented i the necessary manner and
availed for inspection by thee relevant antharities as and when requested. Kenva Law has endeavored to
maintain cthical marketing praictices n all s engagements with the media, The organization not only
markets its goods and services by focusing on how our products benefit customers, but also how they
benefit the Republic of Kenva as a whole. Our aim is 1o build strong relationships with our consumers
through a set of shared values espoused in our Steategic Plan 2018-2022 as mntegrity, professionalism,
transparency and accountability, innovation, reliability and citizen focus.

Towards this ¢nd, Kenya Law has also endeavored 1o safepuard consumer rights and interests in all
products and services issued. Al online publications are universally aceessible to all consumers and ean be
consumed in any way needed, both online and in hard copy. Prin products are sold ai a discounted price
almed at offsctting the cost of production only. In addition, Kenya law subseribes (o the “Free Access to
Law” movement and therefore docsnot aim 1o make profit from the sale of its publications.

Community Engagements

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is an integral part of Kenya Law's corporate cuhture. As part of the
greater Government of Kenya strategy of giving back to socicty, Kenya Law is committed to identifying
and living withthe values that are important to our customers and the larger community,

Kenya Law conducted five () CX¥Roacuvities 1 the financial vear 2019/2020:
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Corporate Social Responsibility activities in 2019/2020

y

Standard Chartered Marathon- 2019

As part of Corporate Social Responsibility, Kenya Law staff and management participated in the 2019
edition that was held on the 27" October 2019. One of the objectives of the marathon was to Raise funds
towards the ‘FFuture makers’ initiative to open opportunities for the next generation to learn, earn and
grow. In the otherinitiative, “Goal Programme™ 5,000 youth will benefit through financial education and
9,000 will be getting financial assistance in high school. Some 75 Kenyans also had their small and
medium-sized enterprises bolstered financially.

Kenya Law staff represented the organization during the standard Chartered Marathon

GOK Strategy for restoration of forest cover _
Kenya Law partcipated in a tree planting exercise organized by the office of the Attorney General in
Ngong Forest as its contribution to the larger Government of Kenya strategy towards increasing Kenya’s

forest cover to 10% by 2022,

e

The Attorney Geieral, Haon Re. Justece Pand Kebara Kavinki planting a tree at fhe Nyong Dorest

@
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¢) Kakamega Iorest Tree Planting/ Marathon

Kenya Law participated in the Kakamepa FForest Marathon dubbed “Ingo Iorest challenge marathon”; an
initiative of the Kakamega Forest HHeritage Trostin November 2019 The objecune of the Marathon was to
reclaim and increase the forest cover of the Kakamcga Forest through tree plantng, The theme of the
2019 marathon was “Running (o Restore and Conserve”, Kenva Law donared 300 indigenous tree
seedlings for planting.

Kenya Law staff with the Cheef Coacst: HIE Dr Stophen Ketonzo Musyoka at the 150 "Ingo-Forest Challenge” race
during the Kakanrega Voresi Marabon on 30" Norewber, 2019

d) Jomo Kenyatta Public Beach Clean-up exercise

Kenya Law collaborated wih Kenya Wildlite Service and the Mombasa Counmy government in cleaning
up of the Jomo Kenvatta Public Beach, This was an efTort towards environmental sanitation specifically
to rid the Ocean of plastics and other hazardons waste. The beach clean-up was aimed at improving the
coastal and ocean ccosysteny by reducing the discharge of toxic waste into the ocean that wind up killing
marine life and disrupting the marine life cycles. The clean-up was also an opportunity to engage staff,
educate and create awareness on the state of ourcoastal repi

PHEL N ANGEAL YTEAR !'.‘il)lvlﬁlki.\a‘l.i’.,“. .
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¢) Kenya Law Impucis lives at the Langata Women’s G.K Prison

Kenya Law visited the Langata Women’s G.K Prison, a correctional facility based in Nairobi (Langata
Constituency) on March 13, 2020. The visit was aimed at updating the mmates on the emerging trends in
Case Law, a donation of two desktop computers updated with relevant criminal and civil court decisions
as well as relevant Laws of Kenyan was made.

Kenya Law also distributed 100 copies of the pocket-size Constitution of Kenya, 2010 and 3 copies of
Laws of Kenya Grey books for the prison library to aid research for their paralegals. To sum up the
occasion, Kenya Lawplanted 55 indigenous tree secdlings within the prison compound.

{ 0 f ‘ ';/.~-l" R el

Prison Inmates at the Langata prisons receiving copies of the constitution and Kenya Law Members and the prison warders
planting trees within the prison compound, '
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10. Reporl of Council Members

[
The Council Members subiit their report together with the unaudited finencnd straments for the year
ended]unc 30, 2020 which <how the state of affairs of the Natonal Counetl - aw Reporting.
Principal activitics
The principal acuvitics of the National Council for Law Reporting are:
i) To publish the official reports of the judicial opinions of the superior courts of Kenya. Kenya Law is
the designated publisher of the Kenya Law Reports, which are the official law reports of the Republic
of Kenya.
ii) To revise, consolidate and publish the Laws of Kenya, through Legal Notice No. 29 of 2009, through ®
which the Attorney General has delegated to the Council the powers of law revision conferred by
Sections 7 and§ of the Revision of Laws Act.
iii) "T'o publish suchi other related publications as it deems necessary.
On Kenya Taw's website - www.kenyalaw.org- you will find Case law. the laws of Kenya, the ®
Pariamentary Hansards, the Kenya Gazetie, and the Daily Cause List from vinons courts, Legal Notices
and other publications. .
Results
= . . . L . ]
The results of the Nauonal Council for |aw reporting lor the vear ended Tane 30, 2020 are set out on
ages | - 32 helow
pag
Council Members
The members of the Council who served during the reporting period are ~hown on pages v - vii above
inaccordance with the NCIR Act No. 11 of 1994,
Auditors P
The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of the National Council for Law Reporting in
accordancewith the Public Audit Act 2015. ;
o ®
By Order of the Couniit
[ ]
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Report of Council Members

The Council Members submit their report together with the unaudited financial statements for the year
endedJune 30, 2020 which show the state of affairs of the National Council for Law Reporting.

Principal activities
The principal activities of the National Council for Law Reporting are:

i} To publish the official reports of the judicial opinions of the superior courts of Kenya. Kenya Law is
the designated publisher of the Kenya Law Reports, which are the official law reports of the Repubtic
of Kenya. :

il) To revise, consolidate and publish the Laws of Kenya, through Legal Notice No. 29 of 2009, through
which the Attorney General has delegated 1o the Coundl the powers of law revision conferred by
Sections 7 and8 of the Revision of Laws Act.

iif) To publish such other related publications as it deems necessary.

On Kenya Law’s website - wwwkenyalaw.org- you will find Case Law, the Laws of Kenya, the
Parliamentary Hansards, the Kenya Gazette, and the Daily Cause List from various courts, Legal Notices
and other publications. :

Results

The results of the Nadonal Council for Law reporting for the year ended June 30, 2020 are set out on
pages1 - 32 below.

Council Members
The members of the Council who served duzing the reportng pedod are shown on pages v - vii above

inaccordance with the NCLR Act No. 11 of 1994,

Auditors

The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of the National Council for Law Reporting in
accordancewith the Public Audic Act 2015,

By Order of the Connii!
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Il Statement of Directors’ Responsibiiities

Scction 81 of the Public Finance Manngement Act, 2012 and The State Corporations Act Cap 446 of laws
of Kenva; require the Council to prepare finanaal statements in respect of Natonal Councl for Law

Reporting, which give a true and fair view of the stare of affairs and the operating results of Keoya Faw
tor that year. TheCounal Members are also required to ensure that Kenya Law keeps proper accounting
records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position of Keaya Law. The Council s
responsible for safeguarding the assers of Keaya Law and the preparaton and presentanon of Kenya Law’s
financial statements, which give a trueand fair view of the state of atfairs of Keaya Law as at the end of the
financial year eaded on June 30, 2020.

This responsibility includes:

) Maintaining adequate financial management armangements and ensuring that these continue to be
etfective throughout the reporting period: 11) Mamtaining proper accounting records, which disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any tme the f1nancial posttion of Kenya Law; 1) Designing, implementing and
malntaining intermal controls relevant to the preparaton and fair presentation of the fnancial statements,
and ensuring that they are free from material misstatements, whether due to error or fraud; 1v)

Safey v) Selecting and applying appropriate accounung policies; and viy nuking

guarding Keoya Law's asscts:

accounting cstirmaies thit are reazenable in the creumstances.

. _ ; 'y
aws Doancial statements whick

using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judy

The Councl memibers seecpr responsibilisy for Keava

been prepared
cments and estinytes, n
conformitywith International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) wnd in the manner required by

the PEM Act andthe State Corporations Act.

iave i truc Ziﬂ(l fﬂ![ ‘.'i‘\:\‘\'

The Council members are of the opinion that the Kenya Law’s inancial statements g

of the state of Kenya Law’s rransactions during the finanaal year ended June 30, 2020, and of the its
financial positionas ar that date. The members further contirm the completeness of the accouniing records

maintained for Kenya Law, which have been relied upon i the preparation of its iinancial statemients as

well as the adequacy of thesystems of internal financial control.

Nothing has come 10 the attenton of the Council members 1o indicate that Kenya Law will oot remain a

poingconcern forat least the next twelve months from the date of this statement.

ol 7 e T
AApproral of the jinancial staitenenss

The financial statements for Natonal Councll for Law Reporting were approved by the Counal on

{é T;Jr] €. 2021 and signed on its behalf by

N
3\ L

Chairperson Member
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON NATIONAL COUNCIL FOR LAW
REPORTING FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2020

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the National Council for Law
Reporting set out on pages 1 to 36, which comprise the statement of financial position as
at 30 June, 2020, and the statement of financial performance, statement of cash flows,
statement of changes in net assets and statement of comparison of budget and actual
amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the
Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. | have obtained all
the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
- position of the National Council for Law Reporting as at 30 June, 2020, and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with International
Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and comply with the National Council
for Law Reporting Act No.11 of 1994 and the Public Finance Management Act, 2012.

Basis for Opinion

The audit was conducted in accordance with International Standards of Supreme Audit
Institutions (ISSAls). | am independent of the National Council for Law Reporting
Management in accordance with ISSAl 130 on Code of Ethics. | have fulfilled other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. | believe
that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Report of the Auditor-General on National Council for Law Reporting for the year ended 30 June, 2020







REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, | confirm that nothing has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
public resources have not been applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that |
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance as
to whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial
statements comply, in all material respects, with the authorities that govern them. | believe
that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on
Effectiveness of Internal Controls, Risk Management and Governance, | confirm that
internal controls, risk management and overall governance were effective.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Shortage of Staff

The Council’'s Human Resource Policy Manual, 2016 provides for a staff establishment
of one hundred and sixty-three (163) in various categories and job groups. However, the
total staff in post during the financial year were seventy-two (72) resulting into a deficit of
ninety-one (91). The significant under staffing might have adversely affected segregation
of duties and effective delivery on the Council’'s mandate.

2. Non- Implementation of e-Procurement

The Council had not implemented e-procurement as required by Executive Order No.2 of
2018 and continues to undertake its procurements manually.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that | plan and perform the audit so as to obtain assurance as to whether effective
processes and systems of internal control, risk management and governance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. | believe that the audit evidence | have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Report of the Auditor-General on National Council for Law Reporting for the year ended 30 June, 2020
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Responsibilities of Mlanagement and the Council Members

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance International Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal control as Management deiermines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control.

In preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Council's ability to continue to sustain services, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of intention to terminate the Council or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

in addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities whnich govern them, and that public money is appliad in
an effective manner.

The Council Members are responsible for overseeing the Council's financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how the Management monitors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance
and risk management. and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control
environment.

Auditor-General’s Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reascnable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from maierial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

In addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance review is planned and
periormed to express a conclusion with limited assurance as to whether, in all material
respects, the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial

Report of the Auditor-General ot National Council for Law Reporting jor the yvear ended 30 June, 2021
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statements are in compliance with the authorities that govern them in accordance with
the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution and submit the audit report in
compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. The nature, timing and extent of the
compliance work is limited compared to that designed to express an opinion with
reasonable assurance on the financial statements.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and review of
compliance, | consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the ISSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
Council policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with ISSAls, | exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

» lIdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Council’s
ability to continue to sustain its services. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
I 'am required to draw attention in the auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Council to cease to
continue to sustain its services. ‘

Report of the Auditor-General on National Council for Law Reporting for the year ended 30 June, 2020
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s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disciosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

s Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business aciivities of the Council to express an opinion on the financial statements.

> Perform such cther procedures as | consider necessary in the circumstances.

| communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal contro! that are identified during the audit.

| also provide Management with a statement that | have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

(\! v ™
SR I s W Y
CPA MNanhty Gzathtngu, CBS
AUDITOR-GEMNERAL
Mairobi
09 February, 2022
Report of the duditor-Ceneral on National Council for Law Reporting for the vear caded 30 June, 2021
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Revenue from non-exchange transactions
e Transters trom Government Of Kenva 6 354300000 313,660,000
ants in kind from development parmers (JPIP) 7 - 9,445,188
Deferred Income realized $ 5,007,996 6,064,308
Total 359,307,996 329,109,496
? ® Revenue from exchange transactions
: Rendering of Services (Other Income) 9 2,500,000 2,022,095
Sale of goods 10 6,004,400 8,138,625
. Total 8,504,400 10,160,720
o Total Revenue 367,812,396 339,270,216
Expenses
Fplovee cosis 1 133016175 132,824,633
© o Counal Members 12 L 095568 4707616
13 2,855 i 26,021,125
Depreciation and Nmortizaton Fxpenses 14 103,341 426 22126
Repates and dMatntenance 13 4889119 +,974,557
@ Contracted Services {6 17,266,547
Purchase of Goods and Services [ 121,039,037
Bank Charges i 209,495
Total Expenses 19,264,297
5
Surpius /(Deficit) before ax (10,173,615} 26,005,919
Taxation 19 5 .
® Surplus/ (Deficit) for the period/year (10,173,615) 20,005,919
The notes set out on pages 6 1o 32 torm an integral part of these Financtal Statements.
1/t9r*(\ 2.0 Head of Finance Chairperson of the Council
. one't Terer Mr. Pascal Othieno Hon. Chicl Justice Martha K. Koome
o / N / { T Y s
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14, Statement of Financial Position as at 30% June 2020 > f
»
G 20E 201
: Jdsstis
Assets
Current Assets .
Cash and cash equivalents 20 88,653,475 72,240,984 ®
Current portion of receivables from exchange transactions 21 24,542 605 24.903,633
Receivables from non-exchange transactions 22 9,699.704 761,825
Inventordes L0023 222113455 197,104,622
Total Current Assets 345,009,239 295,011,064 @
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment Co24 52,373,542 62,140,659 :
Intangible assets 25 2,367,346 2,906,655 o
Long term receivables from exchange transacdons 21 3,780,255 3,780.255
Total Non-Current Assets 58,521,143 68,827,569 -
Total assets 403,530,382 363,838,633
®
Liabilities |
Current Liabilities 3
. {
Trade and other payables from exchange transactions 26 76,836,787 20,679,692 g
Deferred income 27 160,602,698 165,610,694 f
Employec benefit obligation 28 . 1,283,735 »
Total Liabilities ' 237,439,485 187,574,121
Nert Assets
Capital Fund 23,565,276 23,565,276 B
Retained Earnings 142525621 152,699,236
Total Net Asscts 166,090,897 176,264,512
Total Net Assets and Liabilities 403,530,382 363,838,633
‘The Financial Statements set out on pages 1 1o 5 were signed on behalf of the Council Members by & ‘
Ediwr/C.E.G Head of Finance Chairperson of the Council
Mt Longiet Terer Mr. Pascal Othieno Hon. Chief Justice Martha K. Koome
‘4 { 3
ICPAK M.No: 7220 Nﬁ\:ﬁ_&\\ ®
D::.xc}/'rh““{ze’-24 Date gg JU”@-?A& : Datebé lLr‘)‘:‘:’?—f
@ «
®
iy
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Addidons

Surplus for the period

Transfer to deferred Income
realized
A S0P June, 2009

Asac ) fuly, 2o

Mddinons

Surp
Transter ro deferred Income
]

realtzed

At 307 June, 2020

oo ) .
Lhully Tor tive ol s

et

=1 Assets fort

{6,064,308)

163,610,694

165,610,694

(3,007 9963

169,602,698

Hunyes’

20,005,919

152,699,236

152,699,236

(10,173,615

23,656,276

he Year Haded 30" June 2020

XA

20,005,919
(6.064,308)

341,875,206

(10.173,613)
(5007 .996)
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16.

Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 30" June 2020

' .
SAEORG000 T 2018-0019
et RShe Zoe s o 0 Rsh
Cash_ﬂo_ws from operating activities i
Surplus / (Deficit) for the pedod / year ‘ (10,173,615) 20,005,219 ®
Non - cash Adjustments
Depreciation and Amoriizadon 14 10,341,426 12221 266
Cash flows from Non-cash adjustments 167,811 32,227,185 :
Cash flows from working Capiral changes 9 |
(Decrease) /increase in Receivables from exchange
HANSACGOS 21 361,028 9,762,767
{Decrease) /increase in Receivables from non-exchange
transactons 2 (8,937,879) 6,314,546 4
{Decrease)/increase in Inventodes 23 (25,008,833) (1,832,207) D
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables from ;
éxch:mge S C o s 26 56,157,095 7,798,716
(Decrease)/increase in Employee benefit obligation 28 (1,283,735) (78,644)
(Decrease)/increase in Deferred income 27 (5,007,99¢) (6,064,308) 9
Net Cash flows from operating activities 16,447,491 15,900,870
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant, equipment and intangible
assets 24 (35,000) (4,529,800)
Net cash flows uscd in Investng actvites (35,000) (4,529,800)
Cash flows from financing activities 0 0
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash 16,412,491 43,598,255
equivalents
8
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 72,240,984 28,642,729
Year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the Year 88,653,475 72,240,984
L
Head of Finance Chairperson of the Council
Mr. Pascal Othieno ) Hon. Chief Justice Martha K. Koome ;
ICPAK MNo: "2 26 Pordons ;’
: \ >
1
" S Yoo
* ‘_‘: 1 4 r F] g
Dmc\g‘r’:g\’l“l&%a\ Date V’ o “J"Z—-Za.la D’trcb{i{?"by
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18.

INotes to the Financial Statements

1. GENERALINFORMATION

National Council for Law Reporting is established by an act of parliament Act No.11 of 1994 from
where it derves its authority and mandate. The endty is wholly owned by the Government of Kenya,
is domiciled in Kenya and has a brand name; Kenya Law. The entity’s principal activity is Publishingand
Printing judicial opinions of the superior courts in Kenya which are the official Law Reports of the
Republic of Kenya, the Laws of Kenya and such other related publications.

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF PREPARATION
a) Statemnent of compliance

The Public Finance Management (PFM) Act 2012 Section 192 provided the setting up of the Public
Sector Accounting Standards Board (PSASB). The Cabinet Secretary National Treasury, gazetted
members ofthe Board through Gazette Notice No. 1199 of 28 February, 2014. The board
approved the adoption of the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) for state organs
operatng as commercial business enddes and the International Public Sector Accounung Standards
(IPSAS) for non- commercial entities. The Nadonal Council for Law Reporting has since prepared
its financial statements in accordance with the International Public Sector Accounting Standards

(IPSAS).

The financial statements are presented in Kenya shillings, which is the funcdonal and reporting
currency of Kenva Law and all values are rounded to the nearest Kenya shilling. The accounting
policies have been consistently applied to 2l the years presented.

b) Application of new and revised International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS)

i) Relevant new standards and amendments to published standards effecdve the vear ended 30°
June 2020.
Several new and revised standards and interpretadons were effective during the year. The
managementof Kenya Law has evaluated the impact of the new standards and their interpretations
and noted that noncof them had an impact on the Kenya Law’s financial statements.

ii) Expected impact of issued relevant new and amended standards and interpretations in issue but
notyet effective in the vear ended 30™ June 2020.
The management of Kenya Law has evaluated the impact of the new standards not vet effective
forthe year ended 30" June 2020 and noted that none of them had an impact on Keaya Law’s
financial statements.

iif) Early adoption of standards

Kenya Law did not adopt any new or amended standards early during the financial year 2019-2020.




Basis of preparation

s e Depmwsae lmossn  snmesmasme ) soss alk 1.
CHIICIS have heen preparce on the [BHH

The fGinancial s s of historieal cost, unless swated otherwise.

[ The cash flow statement is prepared using the indirect method. The financial statements are prepared on
| 3
i accrualbasis.

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS
i Redevanr new stndards and amendments to published standards effective for the vear ended 307 June 2020

1533

Applicable: 1 January 2019
The standard covers public sector combinations arising from exchange

Public ransactions in which case they are treated similarly with IFRS 3(applicable to

Sector acquisiions only) Businesscombinations and combinations arising from non- i
Combinatio exchange transactions which are covered purcly under Public Sector combinations

ns as amalgamanions (This standurd was notapplicable 1o National Counct! for Law

Reporting in the vear 2019720207

i New and wmended simadards and interpreiations inissue bue not ver etfective in the vear ended 30 june2020

IPSAS L Apphcable: T fanway 2022 |
Financial The objective of IPSAS 41 is to csrablish principles for rhe fnancial reporting of
[nsrruments flanchl assers and iities that will present relevant and usetul ntormation 1o

users of fnaccl strements tor their assessmeat of the amounts, timing and

uncerianty of an entte’s future cash ows,
IPSAS 41 provides users of finuncial statements with more usetul information
than TPSAS 29 by

= Applving o sigle classification and measurement modc! for financial

assers that considers the characreristics of the asser’s cash Hows and rhe

seet 1s held;

objective tor whichthe s
° Applving a single torward-looking expected credit loss model that s
applicablero all tinancial instruments subject to imipairment testing and

= Applving an improved hedge accounting model thne broadens the

hedging arrangements in scope of the guidance. The maodel develops a

stroag link benween an entiny’s risk management straregies and the




NANCH

STATEMENTS FORTHE FL

- IPSAS 42: Social
Benefits

Amendments to Other
IPSAS resulting from
IPSAS41, Financial

Instruments

Other Improvements
toIPSAS

Fass & A
R T AR o i
accounting treatment for instruments held as part of the risk
management strategy.

(This standard will be applicable to the National Counci! jor Law Reporting and will bave

| considerable impact upon adoption)

Applicable: 15 January 2022

The objective of this Standard is to improve the relevance, faithful
representativeness and comparability of the information that 2 repordng entity
provides in its financial statements about social benefits. The information
provided should help users of the financial statements and general purpose
financial reports assess:

{2) The nature of such social benefits provided by the endty;

(b) The key features of the operation of those social benefit schemes; and

(c) The impact of such social benefits provided on the entity’s financial
performance, financial posidon and cash flows.

(This standard will be applicable io the National Conncil for Iay Reporting and will hare
considerable impact upon adoplion)

Applicable: st January 2022:

a) Amendments to IPSAS 3, to update the guidance related to the
components ofborrowing costs which were inadvertently omitted when
IPSAS 41 was issued.

b} Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustrative examples on hedging
and creditrisk which were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 41 was
issued.

¢ Amendmeats to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for accounting for
financialguarantee contracts which were inadvertently omitted when
IPSAS 41 was issued.

d) Amendments to IPSAS 33, ro updatc the guidance on classifying
financial instruments on initial adoption of accrual basis IPSAS which
were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 41 was issued.

Applicable: 1% January 2021:

3) Amendments to IPSAS 13, to include the appropriate references tw
IPSAS on impairment, in place of the current references to other
international and/or national accounting frameworks

b} IPSAS 13, Leases and IPSAS 17, Property, Plant, and Equipment.
Amendments to remove transitional provisions which should have been
deleted when IPSAS 33, First Time Adopdon of Accrual Basis
[nicrnadonal Public  Sector Accounting Standards (IPSASs) was
approved 3

cj IPSAS 21, Impairment of Non-Cash-Gencrating Assets and IPSAS 26,
Impairmentof Cash Generating Assets.

Amendments to ensure consistency of impairment guidance to account
for revalued assets in the scope of IPSAS 17, Property, Plant, and
Equipment and IPSAS 31, Inrangible Assets.

d) TPSAS 33, First-time Adoption of Accrual Basis International Public
Sector Accounting Standards (IPSASs).

Amendments to the implementation guidance on deemed cost in




lhu Standard

iil. Earty adoption of standards

Renva baw did noradopoany new or amended stndards during the Ginancial vear 2010

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a) Revenue recognition
i) Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Grants from the Navonal Government
the event occurs and the asscr

Nenva Law recounizes grnts from the Naoonal Government wi

is met. Anoint

recornition crit ow of resources fron o noneexchange ransacion recognized as an
asset s recognized as revenue, except to the extent that w labiing is also recognized in respect ot the same

k]
mnrow.

Donor Graats (Donatons i Kind)

Revenues from nensexchange transacuons with donor ennties are mensured o nae vadue and reco

2 . " «
asser (oash, voods, se

on ohraininge conerol or prope:

For Donations in Kind: Revenues are recognized when the ceconomic benetits or service potenual related to

the asser will ow to Kenva Law and can be mensured with cerminty and relinbly,

Donor Granes {Condiitonal Grangs)

These tunds are recovnized ar Buir ealue when there is reasonable assurance that the Counal will comply

t

with the conditions winching to them and the funds will be reecived. Donor funds related to purchase o

assers are treaied as deferred income and allocated 1o the stuement offinancial performance as income over

the usctul lives of the related assers while ¢

nts related o dircet payment of capenses are treated as donor
fund income and fully expensed inthe income starement,
Recoeniton of Cther Income

L

Orher income mclude monies recetved trom other rransactions other than the sale of books e good will
transters, funds tor projects and grants in kind from other institutions c.g. tor training, special jobs tor specific
institutions etc. These are recognized when received.

i1) Revenue from exchange transactions

Readering of services

Nenyvae Daw tzes revenue from rendering of services for Feonracted assignments ) jobs
nce o the stage u)mp.ulrm. when rhe owtcome of the transaction can be estimated reliably, The

stage of Lumph['u} is measured by reference to labour hours incurred 1o dare as a percentage of ol

cstimared fabour hours, Where the contracr ourcome cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognized

only to the extenr that the expenses incurred are recoverable.
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Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of legal publications such as Kenya Law Reports, Laws of Kenya and other related
publications is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods and when the amountof revenue can be measured reliably and
it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to
Kenya Law.

Budget information

Kenya Law’s original budget for FY 2019/2020 was 'xpproved by the National Assembly in June 2019.
Kenya Law also received an additionzl Kshs. 40,000,000 in additional 2 t.pproprmnons to its approved
budget during the 2* supplementary budget. The addition in appropriations was added to the original
budger upon receiving the respective communication. Accordingly, Kenva Law recorded addmoml
appropriadons of shs. 40,000,000 to the 2019/2020 budget.

The annual budger is prepared on accrual basis, that is all planned costs and incomes are presented in a single
statement to determine the financial needs of Kenya Law. As a result of the adoption of the accrual basis for
budgeting purposes, there is no basis, timing or Kenya Law operational differences that would require reconciliation
between the actual comparable amounts and the amounts presented as a separate additional financial statement in the
statement of comparison of budger and actual amounts.

Kenya Law’s budget is prepared on a cash basis, different to the actual income and expenditure results
disclosed in the financial statements. The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis using 2
classification based on the nature of expenses in the statement of financial performance, whereas the budget
is prepared on a cash basis. A comparison of budget and actual amounts, prepared on 2 comparable basis to
the approved budget, is then presented inthe statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts.

A statement to reconcile the actual amouats on a comparable basis included in the statementof comparison
of budget and actual amounts and the actuals as per the statement of financial performance has been
presented on page 5 of these financial statements.

b) Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabiliges for the current period are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the tax authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amounts are
those that are enacted or substaatively enacted, at the reporting date in the area where the entity operates and

generates taxable income.

Kenya Law being a service orented Semi- Autonomous Government Agency is exempted from paying

Income Tax.

@




the liabiiity method on wmporary differences beoween the tax bas

Deterred tax 1s provid

and liabilities and their carrving amounrs tor financial reporting purposes ar the reporting date.

Deterred tax liabilities are recogr I txable remporary differences, except in respeet of axable
wimpoT ditferenoes associneed s i comrrellod i 1 and inrerests In joinr
i

: v
of the tanparary differences can be controlled and v is probable that

he temporary differences will not reverse in the roreseeable future.

1

venrures, when the timine of the reversal

rred tax assers are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the earry forward of unused rax

Dete
credits and any unused tax losses. Deterred tax assets are recognized o the extent that it is probable that taxable

profic will be available acainst which the deductible temporary ditferences, and the carry forward of unused rax
L oy - ¥ o

credits and unused rax losses can be utilized, except in respect of deductible cemporary differences assoctated
with investments i controlled entities, associates and interests in joint ventures, deterred wx assers arc
recognized only 1o the cxtent thar ir is probable thar the temporary ditferences will reverse in the Foresceahle

Cassers i reviewed ar cach reporring date and reduced to the extencihat i is

- that sutniciear taxable peofic will be ay

able o ol art of the deferred ax asset 1o

be utilized, Unrecog u

ax assers are re-assessed at cach reporting die and are recognized o the

vt future teamble profits will ellow the dererred tax asset 10 be recovered.

len the

are measured ar the tmx raes that sre expected 1o applv in the vear w

s _\;'Hlmf, Dased o fx mtes

tax laws) that have been enacted or

He reporune date.

recopnized ouistde surplus o detion is ized ounside surplus or dener

S¢S,

s i correlation o the unde

AN HTCITES are

HC rnsicion il net

cation authoriy.

the deferred

Nenya Law being o service omented Semi- Autonomous Government Ageney does not employ

tre mcthodology in s compuiation.

Sales tax

Kenya Law recognizes expenses and assets net of the amount ot sales mx, exeept:

i When the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assers or services is nor recoverable from the txauthoricy,
in which case, the sales tx s recogmzed as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset oras parr of the
expense itern, as applicable.
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ii. When receivables and pavables are stated with the zmount of sales tax included.

The ner amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authormr 1s included as
part of receivables or pavables in the statement of financial position.

c) Investment property

Kenya Law initially measures investment properties at cost, including transaction costs. The
carrying amount includes the replacement cost of components of an existing investment property
at the time that cost is incurred if the recogniton criteria is met and c;,\cludes the costs of day-to-
day maintenanceof an investment property.

Investment property acquired through 2 non-exchange transaction is measured at its fair value at
the date of acquisition. Subsequent to inital recognition, investment properties are measured using
the cost model and are depreciated over a 30-year period.

Investment properdes are derecognized cither when they have been disposed of or when the
investmentproperty is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit or service
potential is expected from its disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amountof the asset is recogaized in the surplus or deficit in the period of de-recognition.

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is 2 chanoe in use.
J - o

Kenya Law did not have any investment property during the financial year ended 30® June 2020.

d) Property, plant and equipment

Kenya Law states all property, plant and equipment at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly atrributable to the acquisition of the
items. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the entity recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates - them qccordmvlv Likewise, when a IT”IJOT inspection s pertormcd its cost is
recognized in the carrying amount of the plmt and equipment as 2 replacement if the recognition
criterion is satisfied. All othu routine repair and maintenance costs are recognized in surplm or
deficit as incurred. Where an asset is acquired in a non- exchange transaction for nil or nominzl
consideraton, Kenya Law measures the asset inidally at its fair value.

The annual depreciation is charged on a reducing balance basis art the rates listed below:
e Motor Vehicles - 20%
e Computer, Networks and other IT equipment - 33 1/3%

s Ofiice Furniture and fixtures - 10%

e Office cquipment - 15%




e) Intangible asscts

izes Intangible assers acquired separarcly ininially ar cost. The cosr of intangible assers

Kenva Law
acquired i non-exchange transaction is their fair value at the date ot the exchanee. Following inirial

taneible assers are carried ar ¢

st less any accumulated amortization and accumulared

recognition,
impairment losses. tarernally generated intangible assers, excluding capitalized development costs, are
not capitalized and expenditure is retlected in surplus or deficit in the period in which the expenditure
s incurred.

-

The usctul fite of i

- intangible assets s assessed as cither fnie or indefiniee.

assets 18 2000 on a4 reducime balance basis.

The amordzauon raie for Inrangible

f) Financial instruments

1) Financial Assets

Initial recoenition and measurement

o

Financial assets within the scope of IPSAS 29 Financial Instrumenrs: Recognirion and Measurement are
classificd as Bnancial asseis ac faie calue through surplus or denicit, loans and receivables, held- to-maturity

w determinesthe classification of

investments oy o ible toresale financial assets, as appropriate. Keonva

its nnanctal asscis s recognition,

s non-derivative financiu assers with tved or determinable pavments that are not

roAter inttial measurement, such boancial assets are subsequently measured at

- eftectve mterest method, less impairment. Amortized cosciscaleulared by takis

tiy

any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the

e Losses arising from impairment are recoynized inthe surplus or deficit

Held-to-maturity

Non-dertvarve firncal assers with fixed or dererminable pavmenis and fixed maturities are classifiedas held

maturity when the eniity has the posiiive intention and ability to hold it to maturity. Atrer initial

to

measurement, held-to-marurity investmenis are measured at amordzed cost using the effecrive inrerest

HE g ;ﬂl',l'! account any ({iSC’.)Uﬂ[ Or prunium On

SR

micthod, less imp:
om

acquisiion and fees or costs that are an | al part ot the effecuve interest rate. The losses arising

impairment are recognized in the surplus or deficit.

Impatrment of financial assets

The entity assesses ar each reporung date whether there 1s objective evidence that o financial assetor an

sets s impaired. A\ financial asser or an endre of inancial assets s deemed 1o be

entty of financial
impatred it and only if) there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that

has occurred atrer the il recognition of the asset (an incurred loss event’)




and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the entirty of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include the following indicators:

i) The debtors or an entity of debtors are experiencing significant financial difficulty.
ii} Default or delinquency in interest or principal payments.

iif) The probability that debtors will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization.

o

iv) Observable dat2 indicates a2 measurable decrease in estimated future cash flows (e.g. changes inarrears or

economic conditions that correlate with defaults).

ii) Financial Liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilides within the scope of IPSAS 29 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through

surplus or deficit or loans and borrowings, as appropriate. Kenya Law determines the classification ofits
financial liabilities at initial recogniton.

All financial Liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, plus
directly attributable transaction costs.

Loans and borrowing

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured atamortized
cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognized in surplusor deficit when
the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the effectve interest method amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by raking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and feesor
costs that are an integral part of the effectve interest rate.

h) Research and development costs

Kenya Law expenses research costs as incurred. Development costs on an individual project are recognized
as intangible assets when the entity can demonstrate:
1) The technical feasibility of completng the asset so that the asset will be available for use or sale.
i) Its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset.
1v) How the asset will generate future economic benefits or service potential.
v) The availability of resources to complete the asset.
vi) The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development.
Following initial recognition of an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortzadon of the asser begins when
development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortized over the period of




expected  turure benetit. During the period of development, the asser is

annually with soy impairment o zed immediately in surplns or de

Inventorics

caures ity laventory at cost upon aital recogniion. To the exrent that inveniory

LTOT 0 COST Or Tor L aominal cost), the Cost of

Costs inc Bringing cach product o i present locaion and condinons are accounted tor, as

follows:

1. Raw mar s: purchase cost using the weighted average cost merhod.

ii. Finished goods and work in progress: cost ot direct marterials and labour and 2
proportion of manutacturing overheads based on the normal operaring capacity, bur excluding

!
DOFTORE I COSTS,

e lower of cost and ner realizable valie,

L or deploved at ao charge or tor a

After ol recoeniton, mventory s me

entothat a2 class ot in

However, o the centory 1s disiributes

nominal choree! that class of inventory = measured ar the lower of cost and current replaceme

1y

Nt realrecble vibie s the estimuned sclling price in the ordinary course of aper

. . o .
estitnatted conts of completon and the esimuied wosis nece

distribution.

Inventories we mecognizad as an expense when deplovad tor unliaton or consumprion in he

ordinary course of Kenva Law operanons or inthe ane of scllable invenrorny as cost of sales upon

sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recoenized when Kenva Law has

resulrob o past cvent,

an outtlow ot resources embodvine cennomic benehits or

is probable that

service poreniizl will be required 1o senle the obligation and a reliable esimare can be made of the

AMOUNL ot 'ni\ii::l(inn.

Where Ke

insurancecomr

expeets some or all of a pr

rthe retmbursement s recognized as o

is virtually cortn.

The expense relanng to any provision is presented inthe statemeni of tinancial performance net of

ol

any reimbursement.

Contingencics

Contineent labilitics
o




Y

Contingent assets

Kenya Law does not recognize a contingent asset, but discloses details of a possible asset whose
existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertin future
events not wholly within the it’s control. Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that
developments are npplopnatclv reflected in the financial statements. If it has become virtually
certain that an inflow of economic benefits or service potentnl will arise and the asset’s value can
be measured reliably, the asset and the related revenue are recognized in the financial statements of
the period in which the event oceurs.

Nature and purpose of reserves

Kenya Law creates and maintains reserves deliberately and only for specific requirements as and when
necessary and possible. However,Kenya Law does not have any reserves currently.

Changes in accounting policies and estimates

Kenya Law recognizes the effects of changes in accounting policy retrospectively. The effects of
changes in accounting policy are 2pplied prospectively if retrospective application is impractical.

Employee benefits

Kenya Law provides 2 defined contributions retirement benefits scheme for its emplovees. Defined
contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which an entity pays fixed contributions
into 2 separate entity (a fund), and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
contributions if the fund Iocs not hold sufficient assets to pay all cmplovcc benefits relating o
employee service in the current and prior periods. The contributions to fund obligations for the
pavment of retirement benefits are charged against income in the yvear in w }uch they become

payable.
Foreign currency transactions
g ¥

Transactons in foreign currencies are mnitially accounted for at the ruling rate of exchange on the
date of the transacton. Trade creditors or debmrs denominated in foreign currency are reponcd al
the statement of financial position reporting date by applying the e::chmgg rate on that date.
Exchange differences arising from the settlement of creditors, or from the reportng of creditors at
rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the period, are recognized as
income or expenses in the period in which they arise.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are capitalized against qualifving asscts 2s part of property, plant and equipment.
Such borrowing costs are capitalized over the pcr.od during which the asset is being acquired or




constructed and borrowings have been incurred. Capitalization ceases when construction of the asset

is complere, Puethier borrowing costs are charged to the statement ot hinancial pes

ormance.

0) Related parties
Keava Law reonrds o related party as a person or an entite with the abiline 1o exert control

individu or to exercise sientticant mtluence over the Fatire, or vice versa, Members of

s or joinly,
key mana wrded as related parties and comprise the direcrors, the CEOY and senior

p) Service concussion arrangements

Kenya Law analyses all aspects of service concession arrangements that it enters into in
determining the approprinte accounting reatment and disclosure requirements. [n particular, where
a privare party contributes an asser to the armngement, 1t reeognizes that asset when, and only
when, 1t controls or regulates the services the operator must provide together with the asset, o
whom it must provide them, and at what price. [n the case of assets other than “whole-of-hte’
assets, it contrnls, through ownership, beneniaal entidement or olherwise = any significant residual

Interest in the

et an the ead of the arrangement. Any assets so reeognized are measured at thenr
he exient fhar oan asset bhas been recognized, Kenva Law also recounizes o
usted o cash considernunn pard or received.

e vaiue, To @

ndinge Babiliey, ac

cash cquivalents

N 1 S !
POy S TReTils wtty a Sl rnree montas or ‘L'.\‘.\‘

wwn nounts of cash and are .\Ulle'L'l to msienbicant risk ot

hadances include amounts hedd ae the Central Bank of Ko

commercial banks ar the ead ot the finanerd venr. For the purposes of these financial srcments,

Bank accoun:

cash and cash cquivaleais aiso welude shar term cash impresis and advances o authorized public

ncers or instinions which were not surrendered or accounted For at the end of rhe

Anancial vear.
ry  Compuarative figures

Where e

ssary comparative Ngures for the previous finaacial vear have been amended or

recontiored 1o contorm o the required changes in presentaion.
s) Subscquent evenis

There hove been no evenrs subsequent to the tinancial vear end with a significant impact on Kenyn

Law’s tinancial statements for the vear ended June 30, 2020.




5. SIGNIFICANT JUDGMENTS AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of the Kenya Law’s financial statements in conformity with IPSAS requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of the

reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require 2 material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in

future periods.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptons concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. Kenya Law based irs
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.
However, existing circumstances and assumptons about future developments may change .due to
market changes or circumstances arising beyond its control. Such changes are reflected in the

assumptions when they occur, IPSAS 1.140.

Useful lives and residual values

The useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the following indicators to inform
potential future use and value from disposal:

1) The condition of the asset based on the assessment of experts engaged by Kenyva Law.

if) The nature of the asset, its susceptibility and adaprability to changes in technology and processes.
iif) The nature of the processes in which the asset is deployed.

iv) Availability of funding to replace the asset.

v) Changes in the market in relation to the asset.

Provisions

Provisions were made and management determined an estimate based on the relevant information
available. Provisions for annually recurrent expenditure items are estimated at the previous vears
actual costs incurred to settle theobligation unless there is reasonable foreseeable indication that
the cost might change materially.

A provision of Kshs. 900,000 was made for audit fees based on the actual fees paid in the
finanaial vear2019/2020.

®




NOTESTO

THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. TRANSFERS FROM GOVERNMENT OF KENYA

Unconditional grane

Traosters from The Government of Keava 3044300 000 313,600 000
Deterred Incone readived 5,007 99 G004 308
Total government grants and subsidies 359,307,996 319,664,308
Transters from Ministrics, Departments and Agencics

Thetwyiee o e Yorpey

Cieneral & l) psgse g Y 334 3 i AR RENIERSIEIY
Towml T r:mslcr: 334,500,000 313,666,600
7. GRANTSIN KIND FROM DEVELOPMENT PARTNLERS

ST
=

Conditional grants

Graats in kind Srons Donor

(fudiciary Pertormunce Improvement Programme) 943, 18N
Total Grants in Kind - 9,445,188

Analysis or the Granis oo the Natonal Council tor Law Reporring is as follows:

)

Government of Kenya- These are Un-conditional grants by the government allocated 1o

Kenyu v for recurrent expenditure. These grants are received through the Office ot the

\

Artoraey General & Deparunent of Justice {the parent ministry on a quarterly basis,

Judiciury gvuwmnnu improvement Project grants are non-casi grants atrributable o the

monetay of Assers and L\PL”\.L‘ tor items procured by and paid for by the JPIP

(o the benetir of Kenya Taw in accord:

with the IPIP work, plan. Specitically, i

wnenses and service charge p.'nl for under the JPRIPT (pense items and

1wl matched

have been caprured in the strement ot Snnncia

T D00 I 60 RN,




8. DEFERRED INCOME REALIZED

2()1‘3 2fi19'

Quarter 1 ' IS R __1381 006 v..,_.}.z??g?(}?();

Quater2 . 1291051 1547156
Quareer3 1,206, 875 1454842
Quarter 4 1129063 1,470,230
' Total tmnsferred to the Statement of Comprehensxv | 3,007,996 ; 6,064,308
Loconme i |

Deferred Income for the year is recognized to be equivalent to the depreciation /used value or economic
benefits derived from Assets donated f acquired though the JPIP or other development partaer in the financial

year 2019/2020.

9. RENDERING OF SERVICES (OTHER INCOMES)

'79018 2049

l\shs

Other Incomes (bpeemhzed Pubhcauons — Uzsin

 GishuCounry ) _ 2,500,000 2,022,095

Total revenue from the rendermor ofservxces ) v‘ -_ R 2,500,000, A , 2022 095

Other Incomes are revenues earned as conditional grants for various specialised publication and services offered
by Kenya Law in the year ending 30% June 2020. In the year, Kenya Law published and printed Specialized

Lawsof Kenya for the Uasin Gishu County Government.

10. SALE OF GOGDS

Sale of goods

Sale of Kenya Law reports and othc. rCthCd !
legalpublications o __ 6Load00 8,138,625
Total revenue from the sa]e of ooods 6,004,400 8,138,625

This is revenue earned from sale of Kenya Law reports and other legal publications by Kenyva Law in the financial

vear 2019/2020.




1. EMPLOYEL COSTS (72 members of staff)

tlousing beactits and allowances

Fmiplover velared costs - contributings to pensions and

cdienlaids

Pertormance

Toral Emplovee costs

12. REMUNERATION OF COUNCIL MEMBERS

Chairman’s Honorara

Dircctors emo

609 304

()

132,824,653

cration for council members

13 ENERAL EXPENSES

{nrerner Conncciions

Orther Fuels {(Cooking vas)

Fducation and Libraey Papenses including subscriptions o

Newspapers

rofveshments and vites
o

Puarking Charges

Compurer Sofr

Total general expenses

1,095,868

iy

1,965,631

$.223,702

>

D98 268

14. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES

Properive plant and equipment
[nronoble asseis

Total depreciation and amortization

10,341,426

285,618

4,707,616

2 504 954

16,874

A0 125

(5,838

901800

559 510
661 950

12,221,266




ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDE

15. REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE

| 0ied

: e . : ; LS . Kshs.
Flaot, MC and Bquipment I _ LIt 008.' B .24_2.2..,9.18
Furniture and Equipment - I T L 200' ) - 47350
chaxio_f_ Vv ¢j1;clcs including clcaﬁxhg e 7 | . 273 561 - 335,619
chzur of Comput{.rs ‘ . ..,—r(): 330 : A 2,450 142
Communications Equipment ' ) . ) b - 38,000 « S 18,498
VTotal repairs and maintenance o 4,889,119 4 974,557

16. CONTRACTED SERVICES

Description: & : S A e B G190 R 0189010
SAEhRAR s e e A R T R T R RS
Contracted Professional Services S - 3,183,000 o 4720,000
Contracted Tec_hmcal services ” 22 468 861 B 12,201,273
Couner :md Posmcr:. _ 0 - 139,771__ N B 343,274
Total contracted services ‘ 25,811,632 B 17 ,266,547 ‘

17. PURCHASE OF GOOD AND SERVICES

Accessoriesto Compurers  L6T9I8 1213255
 Advertising and publicity - | 884,640 6,240,754
Provision for Audir fees © 900,000 800,000
Casual Labour - ' - , 808882 909,136
Conferences and Semioars e L68LB00 1,632,595
Donatons 106,000 181,000
Fucl and oil - 7 320,050 622,630
General ofhcc stationery 1,539,591 1,096,584
Insurance (Medical, Group life and WIBA, Moto) 18406322 16,705,102
Laundry Expenses I 74,950 196,300
Legal expenses - - 845,160
| \Ic*nbcrshlp fecs, ducs, sub\crlpmon\ to *)rotessxonal orgs and

tradebodies . ... 201680 347,260
 Printing and pubhshma 88,711,421 23 664,129
Rental (Officcand Warchouse)  26GSLETL 25236982
Sanitary and Cleaning materials - 346,154 - 683,120
Security costs _ - - 234,506 _ l 025440
Telephone expenses 385,996 5 939,147

g



1o\ 1 g ~ 1 i ]
Temporary Commiuree allowances L 046,000 3,335,000
Tradeshows and iwxhibitons 1.549.8.5+4 315012

Training Expenses and Remuoeration of instructors and contrer

bascd training

Travel, moror car aceommaoddarion subsisience anid orher
allowanees

Cost ot Sales

COVID-19 sebired Lixpenses

Total Putchase of goods and services

18.  BANK CHARGES

Bank Charees

Toral Bank Charges 235487

These cosrs are relied o charges incurred when undertiking tansactions through the orea

HECHUTTE;
19, TAXATION

| Taxaton

121,039,037

209,495

269 495

niserons hank

! Toral rax

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALLENTS

Current accounts 57,139,064
OrthersMpesa, Cash To hand) 1494411
88,653,475

Total cash and cash ecquivalents

Analysis of the Cash and Cash Equivalents

a) Current aceonuns

Nenva Comin IR Ishs 53,584,500
Kenva Commeraal i Granes) a2 SO
Barclavs Bank of lonva 4 Nshs 300645372

7967 278
1,273,706

72,240,984

2,825,022




ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2

L S ' 8719064
:’b) Others j 5

Cash in hand - Kshs | 25,110
Swow FE S 1494411
;'I'otal'Cash and Cash quii‘v:'ziénts‘ ' I "878',653,4:75 ”

21. RECEIVABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

70,967,278

1,238,261

1,273,706

72,240,984

Current receivables

Debtors - Legal Publicadons 24,542 605 22,945,553
Other Debtors — The National Assembly - - 1,958,080
Total current receivables ' 24,542 605 24,903,633
Non-current receivables

Lease agreement Deposits (transferred to current receivables) 3,780,255 3,780,255
Total non-current receivables - 3,780,255 3,780,255
Total receivables 28,322,360 28,683,388

22. RECEIVABLES FROM NON-EXCHANGE CONTRACTS

Current receivables

' Debtors - Salary Advances _ 673,253

Othcr debrors (Non-exchange transactions) 2,458,166
Other Prepayments 6,568,285 |

r 'I{'(;tal currcn} ;eceivébles » 9,629;704 ‘

23. INVENTORIES

Stocks of Kenya Law Reports, Laws of Kenya and other legal 213,884,755

| blications | SO SR
Library Books . 7,307,724
Consumables 920,976

‘' Total inventories at the lower of cost and net realizable value

&

| 222,113,455

551,825
210,000

761,825

2018 2019
b RS
87,795,410

1
7307724
2,001,488 |

197,104,622

35,445




8]
=

Historical Cost

At I July 2019
Additions

Disposals
Transter/adjustmnenis

Total (A)

Depreciation and impairment

At 1 July 2018

Depreciarion for the vear 2018719

fmpairmenr

Lo - foly 2019

Depreciation for the v

{B)

Disposals
Impairment
Transfer/adjusimment

Total

Net book values

At 30t June 2020 (A-1

At 30t June 2019

ir 2019/ 20

3)

17,900,000

BRI

7,164,404

0,103,992

LOSL004H

12,064,548

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

55,534,024

33047052

35,100
33,982,952

18,014,825

30,712,479

33,947,952

55,433,218

f4 605,615

14,605,613

33,500,895

40,827,605

£292. 13

45,119,743

10,313,475
14,605,615

6422690

6,422,690

6,297,682

L1164 743

8,272,981

5,512,136
6,422,690

62,140,634

35,000

62,175,659

68,923,390

$0,482,70U

Y6021 17

90,284,817

52,373,542

62,140,639
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25. INTANGIBLE ASSETS-SOFTWARE

Cost
At begmmncr of the year -
Additions B
At end of the year
Additons—internal development
At end of the year
Amortization and impairment
At begmmng of the year
Amortization for the vear
At end of the year
Impaxrment loss '
At end of the - year
Net Book Value

2906655

2,906,655

2,906,655

5,334,768

24t ‘3»"‘ } 1 9

” ‘3‘;@;@1 !

""3,568;6& !

5(861[

4,672,812

539,309

5,874,077

5,874,077

2,367,346

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

661 9‘3()

3,354,768

5,334,768
2,906,655

\udlt fees payable
VOF payshle

Salaries Clearances
HELB payable

Insurance Payable

Loan payable

NHIF Payable

NSSF payable

PAYE Llabﬂm for oHo“ ances
W aumml S?cco Pa\ ab_I:,
‘ Welfare pay: able -
| ICEA Llon Pemmn p'z\ able
Sheria Sacco pay: able
'/\(_t_ru‘.d cht

 Other pavablcs o

Total

1,844,000

1580456

21429

101,032

778893
115,200

31,400
234,060

10,000

50,400

72069916

76,836 787

900,000.00

2,232,028

11,958

85,515
548,178
120,100

32,800

10,000

50,400

1,283,735

1,355,931
ZA99,01

11,250,036,

20,679,692




27 DEFFERED INCOME (UNREALIZED)
Natona Government . -
Grants from Donors 160,602,698 165,610,694

Public Conrribuiions

Total value of Deierred Income 160,602,698 165,610,694

Statement of Deterred Income

i

1Y
it

Balance B/F 1+ fuly 2019 165,610,694
Quarter 1 (1,381,006)
Quarter 2 (1,291,050
Quarter 3 (1,200,875)
Quarter # (11290635
Total transferred o the Statement of Comprehensive Income (3,007,996)

Balance ¢/ {301 June 2020 160,602,698

CBENBEFIT OBLIGATIONS

2S.  EMPLOYI

Kshs Kshs
Currear benetitsblivanon = 1,233,735
Total einployec benefits obligation - 1,283,735

Keava Law has bad o defined bhenefir scheme forall full-time o

aplovees from Julvy 120120 Contribution

rothe scheme 1s at the mzio of 1020 per cent of salary tor emplovee and employver

respectively. No actuasial valuaton was done in the tinencial vear to value the scheme. The scheme value

arthe end of the s oas follows:

Valuadon at dhie besinning of the vear 78,591,033 61,192,787
Changes in valuation during the vear 19,590,637 17,308,245
YValuation at end of the year 98,181,670 78,591,033

Mot o 1! camvani ¥
ks is o denoed

Nenva L

eation under the

contribuii

scheme 1s Emued o specitic huied trom tie o time and s currendy ar Kshse o per

cployvee per monti,




29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT @

The entity’s financial risk management objectives and policies are detailed below:
(@ Credit risk

Credit risk is the dsk that 2 borrower is unable to meet their financial obligations to the lender.
KenyaLaw’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade receivables. The amounts presented in the
statement of financial position are net of allowances for doubtful receivables, estimated by the council’s
management based on prior experience and assessment of the current economic environment.

The amount that best represents the company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is made up as follows:

|
|

(At 30% June 2020

‘Bank balances | - - o | |

{
t

| Receivables from exchange

| ccansactions | 24542605 10,750,343 |

%Receivables from non-exchange ; | ;
i i } ! | H
étmnsacdons L 9,699,704 f 9,699,704 % n Ry
At 30% June 2019

iﬁnﬁa;)k‘ga.lances " s " -1 -1 -
:Rcceixfables from exchange ! .
P | 24903633 | 9,903,633 -

;Rcccivables from non-exchange . ‘
transactions 761825 | 761825 | .| ;

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements representing Kenya Law’s maximum
exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any collateral obuined is made up as follows:




Reccivables from

exchangetransaciions 24542 605 10,750,543

Recervables from non- 9.699 704 9,699, 70y

cxchangerransactions

Buank balinces

Total 34,242,309 20,430,047 . -

The customers under the fully performing category are paying their debts as they continue in operation. The
credit risk associated with these receivables is minimal and the allowance for uncollectible amounts that Kenyal .a
has recognized in the financial statements is considered adequate to cover any potennally irrecoverable amouants
Kenya Law had ereditrisk on amouats due trom customers for the sale of legal publications of Kshs.

13,792,262 assoctated with receivables from exchange transactions.

(i Liquiding sisk ninacement
WRRl| ) 8

Fofor ocorrun neriod of dme o

S T TN
al risk thz

Piguidite sk

Commodinge et Sraded (iuiz:':-;i\.' enoneh o the nurker winhout mmpacting the market price.

TOTIS.

Pleimate respaonsthili

for Nguudine torests with the counatl board members, which has

azement framework for the management of the council’s shor,

built an appropriatce hiquiciny risk ma

medium and long-term tunding and ligquiditey management requirements. Kenva Law manages hquidityosk

by continuous monitoring ot torecasted and actual cash tlows.

The table below analyses the Neava Law’s tinanciad labilives that will he sended on o net basis inwo

relevant maturiiv eroupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheer date to the contraciual

here below disclosed are the contracrual undiscounted cash tlows. Balancesduce

marurity date. The amounts

within 12 months cqual their carrving babinees, as the impacy of discounting is not signiticant.




FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 3

A
At 30tk June 2019 |
Trade and other payables 11,250,036
Other Current Linbilities (Salaries =~ 9,429,656 -
clearances & VAT) i < ‘
B:mk Ovcrdraft ' V ‘ - T
Total
At 30t June 2020
Trade payables - 72069916 - 72,069,916
Other Current Liabilities (Salasies 4766871 - - 4766871
clearances & VAT) ! | A .
e B S S S S
Total 4766 s71 72 069 916 ——— "76,8'36’,7371;

s - 20,679,692

(1)) Market nisk

Market rsk refers to the risk an institution faces resulting from movements in market prices. In
particular, changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and equity and commodity prices. It
comprises of Price risk, Fair value interest rate risk and Foreign exchange risk.

»  Prce risk

This is risk of 2 decline in the value of a security or a portfolio that can be minimized through
diversificaton, unlike market risk. Kenva Law docs not hold investments that would be th]e"t
to price risk; hence this risk does not dJrectlv affect its net worth.

= . Fair value interest rate risk

This is a risk that future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
Investments and borrowings subject to fixed rates expose Kenya Law to fair value interest rate
risk,as the fair value of the financial instrument fluctuates because of changes in market interest
rates. Kenya Law does not hold interest bearing assets or liabilities subject to fair value interest
rate risk; hence this risk does not directly affect its net worth.

®  Foreign exchange risk

This is nisk that an a2sset or investment denominated in a foreign currency will lose value as 2
result of unfavourable exchange rate fluctuations berween the investment’s foreign currency
and the investment holder’s domestic currency.




Remya B occasomritrroeeves gmnﬁ denonTimted T eI CanTey espectt v I S S Dotars— i
arise from fluctuations in the forcign currency exchange raies. Kenya

”.)

CRPOSES Kcm a v 1o risks rlm

ing recerpts and pavments in USD ro minimi

o i

(o L‘f\’pfi_\'ill’i_' [
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v 1

excaanyge l‘iS

= Porcign curreney sensitivity analysis

ble demaonstrates the ctfect on the company’™s statement of comprehensive
B
|

it ihe exchange riic of

The toilowiae t

e

. i om ey 1 o S - S, RO
ncome o "‘[Yl\lll" ihe sersiinviiy for a raasoinuabic p\m.\ll\xfc caangy

R (,ur;r_-nci'-\', with all other variables beld consmman The reverse would

ocewr i the Neava Shilling appreciared with all odier variables held constaar
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Fouroe e .
USD poe =
D
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UsD [
ivy ¢ Rovk Magiag nt

ad the L".nilp.!l‘“‘\ abilite o connnue as a g GOl

are o stk

GEE IS SRR ML)

Ienvie Paw's objectiyes

tn order 1o mainn an optimal capiiad srraciure o redace the cost of capinad,

The capital structure of ihe council consists ot cquiry atintbuiable w equine holders, ((nnprl\ll‘” y.‘(p‘[.‘.l tund.

- wauld crdinarily monitor its capital risk using the cratio. Grearing

Kenva l

reserves a ﬂLl rering

the otal capiral. ]\L ova Law had no borrowings as ar Shth fune 20200,

ratio 1y caleulated ns net horrowings over

Reined |

Capital Reseryve

Total Funds 166,181,897 176,264,312




CEMENTS FOR THE FINANCLA

ANMNUAL REPORT AND FINA

30. RELATED PARTY BALANCES

Nature of related party relationships

A related party is 2 person or entity that is related to the entity that is preparing its financial statements
(referred to as the ‘reporting entity’)

The parties that were related to Kenya Law in the financial vear 2019/2020 were:

°

Government of Kenya - The Government of Kenya is the primary financier of Kenya Law as 2 Semi-
autonomous Government Agency. The GOK Transfers non-condidonal Grants to the Natonal
Councilfor Law Reporting every finandal year.

Office of the Attorney General and Department of Justice - This is our parent ministry; that then
influences the Kenya Law’s strategy. Italso approves Kenya Law’s budget as part of the total budget of
the Office of the Attorney General and Department of Justice as 2 ministry.

Council members — This is the body that gives the strategic direction of the National Council for Law
Reporting and provides oversight over Kenya Law’s secretariat and its activities.

Key Management — These are the persons who manage the secretarat and implement the policy
direction and strategies of the National Council for Law Reporting as directed by the Council members.
Kenya Law has 2 total of eleven (11) management staff.




The transactions are at arm’s length and ave recognized in accordance to Kenya Law’s existing operational

policies.

Transactons with related parties

Sales of leval publications o fudiciry
Sales ot leval publications the Ofhee of the AG & DO

Total

Grants from the Government

Grants from National Govr.

Donations in kind

Total

¢ Expenses meurred on hehalt of relaced pary

Pavments of salaries and wages ror 72 cmplovees

Toral
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100,000
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354,300,000

354300 100
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11,125,957
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313,600,000
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323 045,188
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31. CAPITAL COMMITMENTSORT AND FINANCIALSTATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED (UNE 30, 2

R - e

 Authorized for B
- Authorized and contracted for

32. EVENTSAFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no material adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporting period.

33. ULTIMATE AND HOLDING ENTITY
National Council for Law Reporting is a State Corporation or 2 Semi- Autonomous Government
Agency in the Office of the Attorney General & Department of Justice, herein the holding entity. The
ulimate holding entity for National Council for Law Reporting is the Government of Kenya.

34. CURRENCY

The financial statements are presented in Kenva Shillings (Kshs}.
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Appendix I: PROGRESS ON FOLLOW UP OF AUDITOR RECOMMENDATIONS

here were o lssue

outsmnding as w307 June 2020

Iymmt LExecutve Officer
M/

mused by the external auditor fromn the previous tnancad veards) thar were sall

Chairperson of the Counail




ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIALS

SMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDE] 3 IUNE

Office of the Attorney
! Quarter 1 - (28% August 2019) General &Department of 78,575,000
Jusice
Office of the Attorney )
Quarter 2 - (12 November 2019) General &Department of 78,575,000
' Jusdce
Office of the Attorney
- Quarter 3 - (4% February 2020) General & Department of 78,575,000
Justice -
! ! Office of the Attorney
4 Quarter 4 - (227 May 2020) General &Department of 118,575,000
Justce

o

W

The above amounts have been communicated to and reconciled with the Office of the Attorney
General &Department of Justice. '







